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Ref: 151ADJ/CS Date: 04-02-2022

NOTICE TO THE SHARE HOLDERS
Notice is hereby given that the 51st Adjourned Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at 10:30AM on Saturday the 26th day
of February2022 at the Registered Office of the Company situated at PB No. 510, ‘Bhadratha; Museum Road, Thrissur — 680 020 to transact
the following business:

1. Toreceive consider and adopt the Directors’ Report, the Audited Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2020 and the Profit and Loss
Account for the Year ended 31st March, 2020 together with the Auditors’ Report and the Comments of the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India thereon.

2. Todeclare dividend for the year FY 2019-20
By Order of the Board of Directors,

(Sd/-)

CS EMIL ALEX
COMPANY SECRETARY.
Regd.Office: “Bhadratha”,
P.B.N0.510, Museum Road,
Thrissur — 680 020.
Kerala

Note:

1. In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the Govt. of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (VCA) allowed conducting
Annual General Meeting through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other AudioVisual Means (OAVM) and dispensed the physical
presence of the members at the meeting. Accordingly, the MCA issued Circular No. 19/2021 and Circular No. 20/2021 dated
December 08, 2021, (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”). Therefore, members would have an option to attend the
meeting through VC/OAVM upon prior request, not less than 48 hours prior to the time for holding the meeting.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is also entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of
himself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. A form of proxy is enclosed. A member who wishes to appoint
a proxy must return the proxy form duly completed so as to reach the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours
prior to the time for holding the meeting.

3. Aroute map along with prominent landmark for easy location to reach the venue of the Annual General Meeting is announced
with the notice of Annual General Meeting.

Route Map to the venue of AGM: ; et e i
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The Board of Directors of The Kerala State Financial Enterprises Limited take great pleasure in presenting the 51st Annual Report of the Company,
together with the Audited Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2020

DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

FINANCIAL SUMMARY/ HIGHLIGHTS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS:

Financlal Parsmeters for the year ended Mairch 31 2020 | Mlarch 31 2019
{%in Crores|

(Gross Income 28273 2634 .94
Total Expenditure 272214 25125
Profit Befare Tax 105.16 123 .44
Provision for Taxes/Deferrad tax 3237 44 66
Met Profit T2 .78
Other Comprehensive Income {net of tax) (4.42) (0.16)
Total Comprehensive Income |aftar taxp 6837 Tiad
Shareholder’s Eguity [Metwarth| 76,33 B50.15

APPROPRIATION
Transfar to Reserve 12,19 Taith
Propoded Dividend 5% A5%
Earmings per Share of 1100 each BB.37 T2

Note: - Previous year's figures have been restated wherever necessary, to align with current year's presentation

DIVIDEND & RESERVES

The Board of Directors have recommended a dividend of 35% i.e.Z 35.00 per Equtiy Share on face value of ¥ 100/- each for the year 2019-20 striking
a fine balance between retained earnings and dividend distribution (previous year 35% i.e. ¥ 35 per Equtiy Share) subject to the approval of the
members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. However, the dividend as at 31 March 2020 was accounted for as liabiltiy in accordance with the
then existing Accounting Standard.

A sum of ¥ 72.79 crores (i.e., ¥ 10.52 crores to Chitty reserve and ¥ 62.27 crores to General Reserve) respectively had beent ransferred to Reserves as
decided by the board. The Company is expecting a higher growth in business volume and profits in the coming years.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX ( in Crores)

2019 - 20 105.16
018 - 19 122 44
1017 - 18 ATRA3
avs-17 | |
015 - 16 153,96
i} =0 100 150 200 280 i}

@)
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PROFIT AFTER TAX (% in Crores)

2019 - 20 Ti.Ta
2018 - 19 FES L
2017 - 18 150,93

a 50 100 150 200 250

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Through its network of 577 branches spread under 13 Regional Offices your Company was able to serve its customers throughout the State of
Kerala. There were no significant changes in the nature of business of the Company during the aforesaid period.

Your Company has entered into its 51st year of operation and as planned in the last year company is completing its rebranding exercise by
modernising its branches spread across the State of Kerala. Company in the previous year had completed renovation of 127 branches and
renovation of the remaining branches would be completed on war footing basis. Company is confident in reaching out to all segments of the
socitey and to cater to their financial needs.

Your Company with the intention to reach the younger most generation and as part of broadening its customer base is actively taking steps to
itnroduce a mobile app and a customer portal in the Company. Development of mobile app is almost complete in this regard and is waiting for
regulatory approval for launching the same. Company is also examining the possibiltiy of rolling out pravasi chitty software for domestic chitty too,
thereby enabling a complete digitisation to woo younger generation to avail the services of the Company.

Our Company has already launched its most prestigious product for non-residents under the name of KSFE Pravasi Chitty. In the ensuing fiscal, the
Company would be playing a pivotal role in mobilising funds in association with KIIFB for investment in various projects undertaken by the
Government of Kerala. "KSFE Pravasi chitty”, the first technology driven chit of the company is expected to go a long way in helping the
Non-Resident Keralaites in realizing their dreams by enjoying the financial benefits of chitty and the "value added benefits" attached thereto and
also to fulfill their social responsibiltiy by participating in the developmental activities of their home town. KSFE Pravasi chitty has unwrapped last
year and have attracted many a people, and now it is unfolded its one more wing by allowing NRKs within India and outside Kerala to join this
prestigious product of KSFE. In the coming year we aret rying to achieve the goal of achieving 150000 customers and a100 crore new chittysala. New
strategies are formulated and road map is being prepared for the same. Developing Agencys ystem in Mteropolitan Cities is in final stage by
co-operating various sections of NRKS.

Our next focus is to serve the women force within and outside Kerala. Kerala is a rare state in which no. of women exceeds men according to latest
census report and of course the force of working women group is quite large in comparison with other states. We already have a considerable
segment of women clientele, but it was not due to a conscious effort to attract them. It was due to thet raditional features of chitty which was
familiar to our women socitey for a long time. To enrich this relationship, we have decided to itnroduce some special schemes to empower women
financially which may lead to enhancement of their social status. The company is considering extending its line of loan products exclusively for
women, like gold loan product at a nominal interest rate for a short period in connection with international women's day or some other important

date related to the emancipation of women.
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As envisaged in the previous year your company could not attain target of INR 50,000 crores business due to partial shutdown of the economy in
the last quarter arising due to pandemic outbreak

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OVER THE YEARS (INR in Crores)

20300 @ incoms @ Expandiune
a4 212
ek 513
2500 |
2162
1565 —
FaL 1750 ] A1
[ 498
1500
100
00 !
I
H15-16 JH1E1T 2017-18 K18-19 21820

During the year your Company had earned an aggregate income of 32827 Crores registering an increase of 7.28% over the previous year's 32634

crores. After payment of guarantee commission to the tune of 65.39 crores to the Government of Kerala during the year, the Company made a
profit before tax amounting to ¥72.79 crores.

The activities of the Company during the year have resulted in the following direct and indirect benefits to the Government of Kerala.

PROFITABILITY

(X in Crores)

Yoars 10-11 11.12 1243 13.14 1415 15-16 1617 17-18 18-15 19-20
Caplial & Resenms 181,13 28ad 33442 arae 444 65 480,37 sreGa | ‘I‘H.-H 280,15 976.33
Tumauar * B441.06 | @edsE3 | 1279002 | 1557054 | 18200 20520 | Z2504 48 an# 26237 [35047.35
Fiwed Deposits™ 257185 | 3152 | aserr | sevzes | eromie | oozt | seovrs | weie | 1mmer [1331997
Prodit affer Tax T4 T2T5 £0.62 5068 T0.72 3587 85.27 184.41 TT78 72.79
B ranches [Mos. | 376 387 480 501 507 GO0 563 T 577 577
Employees (Hos.) 5040 5186 5203 5112 5585 B426 GE19 BETT 8777 6571

mﬁ?m 7598 BT 96 seer | 1re | wem | sz | toezs M 13046 | 1543

Turnover includes total auctioned sala and loans outstanding but does not include deposits
Fixed deposits include short term deposit and Chitty Securtiy Deposit in Trust

The cotnribution to State Exchequer Includes-Service charge (till 2014-15), Guarantee Commission —65.39, Registration & Filing
Fee -347.40, Rates & Taxes -30.27, Dividend - %35 and Insurance -30.38.

©,
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2018 - 19 26227

2017-18 [ zaors
2016 - 17 | 2204

TURNOVER (% in Crores)

2015 - 16 20520

2014 - 15 _

2013 -14 15571

2012-13 [ 2o

2011 -12 9947

2010-11 _“"ll

2009 - 10 i

0 5000 10000 15000 20000 25000 30000

NUMBER OF BRANCHES

At the close of financial year, your Company had 577 branches spread under 13 regional offices. The Company proposes to open 50 new branches
out of 100 branches proposed last year and also another 14 new branches across the State of Kerala. By doing so, Company intends to provide
employment opportunities for the educated job aspirant youth in the State and spread its wings to unrepresented areas thereby extending its area
of operation and including more and more people in its customer base. As envisaged in the previous year, as part of rebranding exercise your
company has already renovated 127 branches across the State till 31.03.2020. Steps have also been taken to renovate the remaining branches at the
earliest.

Company will take steps in the ensuing year to spread its wings to mtero cities outside Kerala, starting with mteros situated in South India. Your
Company has also taken steps to commence loan hubs at predetermined locations.

TOTAL BRANCHES

FOLT-1H, 577

F01E-37, 56E

CONTRIBUTION TO STATE EXCHEQUER

2018.20 | 201818
[¥ in Crores)
Guarantee Comimis sion 65.25 841
Registratian & Filing Fes 474 36,58
Ratas & Taigs 037 IET
Cividand 35 £
Biaba InsaBncs Framium 038 ¥
Tortad 14844 13046
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CONTRIBUTION TO STATE EXCHEQUER

2015-16
B 2016-17
2017-18
2018-15
2019-20

PERFORMANCE OF THE MAJOR PORTFOLIOS OF THE COMPANY
CHITTY

The total sala of chitties conducted from all the branches put together rose to % 2096.63 crores as against¥1817.13 crores at the end of previous year,
registering an increase of 15.38%;t ranslating to 3279.5 crores during the year under review. Total number of subscribers also increased to 18,89,926
during 2019-20 from 17,61,972 during 2018-19.

GOLDEN JUBILEE CHITTY-2019

During 2019-20 special chitty drive viz. named Golden Jubilee Chitty 2019(from June 2019 to February 2020) with attractive special incentives and
prizes, alone could mobilize chitty sala worth ¥ 700 Crores . Due to the Covid 19 pandemic, the campaign period was extended till 14/08 /2020 and
resulted in achievement of target of ¥ 700 Crores. Chitties with duration of minimum 25 months were started under this scheme. Other than State
level, Region level and Branch level prizes, benefits offered in this scheme were:

a) Waiving off future liabiltiy in case of accidental death of prized subscriber. Liabiltiy up to 5 lakhs (if the age of the subscriber is above 40)
and upto INR 10 lakhs (If the age of the subscriber is 40 and below) can be waived off in chitties coming under this scheme:

b) Prompt subscribers who had not made any default in chitty throughout the chitty period would eligible for an amount equivalent to
instalment amount for joining in new chitty subject to a maximum amount of INR 25000/-

¢ Prompt subscribers who had not made any default in chitties terminated between 15.6.2019 and 31.3.2020 were eligible for an amount
equal to last instalment amount subject to maximum INR 25000/- for joining in new chitty under the Golden Jubilee Chitty.

d) Chitty loan up to 50% of Sala available after remittance of 5% of total instalment

GOLD LOAN

Year 2019-20 saw another turnaround in our Gold Loan Business, by achieving all time record of ¥ 2064 Crore during 2019-20 from ¥ 879 Crore
during 2018-19. Advertisement campaigns through audio, visual, print and outdoor media, itnroduction of product innovation and motivation of
staff through multilevel meetings on regular basis helps us to achieve this record.

O,
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LOANS & ADVANCES

The Company continued to give high importance to its loan portfolio in line with its social objectives.
The breakup of overall loan portfolio as on 31.03.2020 is as tabulated below

201920 Composition (%) of total
i i Croves) loans
Gald kaan et 27.83
|H‘_‘-EE Perzonal Loan & Fixed Depaosit Loan 1851 498
{KSFE Mousing Loan 1204 17 45
Mew Chitty Loan (NCLISPEL L] 2749
Oithers 167 235
Total 414 100

GOLD LOAN

Total gold loan disbursed during the reported year was ¥3738.36 crores and the total outstanding as on 31st March, 2020 stood at ? 2063.75.13
crores as against 899 crores for the previous year.

GOLD LOAN (% in Crores)

2009 - 20 2064
2014 - 19 893
2007 - 18 os
2ue-17 | =
2005- 16 752
] =00 1000 150 2000 2500

RELIABLE CUSTOMER LOAN (RCL) & FIXED DEPOSIT LOAN (FDL)

Disbursements amounting to ? 796.35 crores were made under the Reliable Customer Loan Scheme & FD Loan during the year and the total
outstanding as on 31.03.2020 increased to ?1852 crores as against ? 1826 crores as on 31.03.2019.

RCL & FDL (% in Crores)

o o = s

2015 - 16 2016 -17 2017 - 14 2018 - 19 2019 - 20
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New Chitty loan amounting to 71660 crores was disbursed during the year and the total loan outstanding as on 31.03.2020 rose to ? 2038 crores as
against ? 1746 crores for the previous year.

CHITTY LOAN/NEW CHITTY LOAN (% in Crores)

NEW CHITTY LOAN/PASS BOOK LOAN

2500

1698 1710
1585 -__.__-_-_

2000
1500 1m_________--0-
1000

500

2015 - 16 2016 - 17 2017 - 18 018 - 19 2019 - 20

NEW HOUSING FINANCE SCHEME

During the financial year under review, disbursement under the scheme amounted to % 374.40 crores. The total loan outstanding including loans
under the Housing Finance Scheme as on 31st March, 2020 increased to ¥ 1294 crores as against % 1088 crores for 2018-19 representing 19% growth.

CONSUMER /VEHICLE LOAN

Total amount of advance disbursed during the year under Consumer/Vehicle loan scheme was % 12.55 crores. The outstanding advance under both,
Hire Purchase and Consumer Vehicle Loan scheme as on 31st March, 2020 decreased to ¥34.53crores as against % 36.48 crores for the previous year.

It could be noticed from the above that the Company's all major schemes like Chitty, Reliable Customer Loan/FD loan, Gold Loan, New Chitty Loan
and New Housing Finance Scheme showed increasingt rend vis-a-vis previous year. In short, the net result reflects a better position in total advances
during the year as total advances, during 2019-20 rose to ¥ 7721 crores as against ¥ 6226 crores for 2018-19, signifying an increase of ¥ 1495 crores
whicht ranslates to 24%. The aforesaid amount includes ¥ 520.69 crores advanced to M/s Kerala Social Securtiy Pension Limited as inter corporate
loan.

TOTAL LOANS (% in Crores)

~EEEBERERE
%

2015- 16 2016 - 17 2017 - 18 20148 - 19 2018 - 20
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DEPOSITS

The total deposits viz. Fixed Term Deposits under Government Guarantee increased to ¥ 8752.75 crores as on 31.03.2020 as compared to ¥ 7712.99
crores as at 31.03.2019. The amount outstanding under Sugama Deposits, under Government guarantee, as at 31.03.2020 rose to 3904 crores
whereas the previous year's balance was ¥850.60crores as on 31.03.2019. Short-term deposit increased to ¥ 164 crores as on 31.03.2020 from
%156.22crores as on 31.03.2019.

The breakup of deposit portfolio as on 31.03.2020 was as under;

2019-20 Composition (%) of total
[ ® in Crores) loans
Fixed Deposit 8753 £5.13
Short Term Deposits 164 1.67
sugama Deposits 004 9.2
Total 8821 100

CHITTY DEPOSIT IN TRUST

Chitty Deposit in Trust Scheme (meant for prized subscribers which enable them to deposit amount equivalent to their future liabiltiy in the chitty),
stood at 34404 crores as on 31.03.2020 as against 33828 crores as on 31.03.2019.

The total deposits of the year ended 31.03.2020 was at ¥14,224 crores as against 12,548 crores as on 31.03.2019, representing a growth of 13%.

TOTAL DEPOSITS (R in Crores)

16000
14000 --_____.—-'1"-"'-7-4

e
12000 11168 i
10000 L0&5n

Bo0n
GO0
4000
2000

2015 - 16 2016 - 17 2017 - 18 2018 - 19 2019 - 20

The company based on the expert opinion received, has nott ransferred any amount to IEPF in accordance with Section 125(2) of Companies Act,
2013. Repayment of deposits accepted by the Company are fully guaranteed by State Government of Kerala and falls under the category of
exempted deposits read with Rule (2)(1)(c)(i) of Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

PROGRESS IN OTHER LINES OF BUSINESS

The Company has completely revamped its Gold Loan Scheme to attract more customers. Safe deposit lockers are another important area for the
company in generating alternative income.
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NEW INITIATIVES
a) Gold loan Scheme

The impending regulation proposed by RBI for regulating NBFCs is expected to ensure disciplined growth of this sector. As a
public sector undertaking with strong social objectives, the Company sees greater opportuntiy and role in gold loan sector.
Once the proposal of the Company to start branches in all Panchayaths of Kerala in accordance to the feasibiltiy of the area is
achieved, the business under this portfolio would significantly scale to higher levels. The Company will also revise the interest
rates and per gram amount of loan from time to time depending upon market conditions. The total target for the year was inr
5000 Crores with a growth of 150% over the last year's business. We propose to continue exclusive advertisement campaign in
audio/ visual/ print media for pushing the product. Outdoor media viz. Hoardings, advertisement on medians/ bus shelters etc
is also proposed to continue for greater visibiltiy for our product.

The diversification of this product is also envisaged during this FY in order to include a larger segment of customers, thus
ensuring the securtiy & non-exploitation of common public from the unscrupulous private firms. Two main schemes envisaged
are Gold over Draft & Gold Loan under EMI scheme. Gold OD is similar to our Sugama Akshaya OD scheme in which OD is allowed
against the Gold securtiy only. EMI scheme is intended for certain period in which the Loanee has to remit Equated Monthly
Installments

In this era of women empowerment, and also as a women -friendly institution with a women staff majortiy, KSFE is envisaging a
Gold Loan product exclusively for women , perhaps first time in Kerala. The scheme under preparation will offer a comparatively
lesser interest gold loan for housewives.

b) Sugama Akshaya OD for all customers

At present this scheme, is limited to Govt. employees as well as teachers. The major segment under this scheme is our employees
so that the purpose has not served. So, inorder to achieve our target in this portfolio, we have to redefine the target customers.
Although our CD ratio doesn't show much improvement in the recent past, we have wider scope for this loan scheme in all
manners. So, we hope to spread Sugama Akshaya Overdraft scheme to all segments of public, with stipulated conditions such as
repaying capactiy, sufficient securtiy etc, as such a venture will bring a new segment of people especiallyt raders house holders
and other groups under the umbrella of KSFE

<) Mobilisation of Sugama Deposits using Agents
Sugama Deposits are somewhat similar to savings deposits of banks with higher interest rates. It is one of the most cost effective
deposit and can be widened in to a large number of people using our agency network. More over we can penterate in to
common public by establishing an agency Network like Mahila Pradhan Agents......etc.

NON-PERFORMING ASSETS

The total dues as on 31.03.2020 stood at ¥ 2929.06 Crores which include RR dues of ¥939.06 Crores and Non RR dues of 1990 Crores respectively.
For the previous year RR dues stood at % 660 Crores and Non RR dues at ¥ 1518 Crores, thus making total dues as on 31.03.2019 amounting to3¥ 2178
Crores. The company has always accorded top priortiy for preventing fresh NPAs and for reducing existing default level. Company is giving emphasis
to current action for current default policy to reduce the default level. A multi-pronged strategy comprising effective follow up and activation of
settlement process for reducing both RR and non -RR files is actively followed. Our company during this FY had launched a multi faceted recovery
program towards intensive drive for maximising collection to cut down the size of default in connection with Suvarna Jubilee of Company. Suvarna
Jubilee llavu 2019 scheme was one of such prime initiative,which provided OTS faciltiy to defaulters under RR and Non RR cases under which we
were able to close/update 72120 files and could collect ¥1035.16 crores.

Going forward in FY 2020-21 the company would be further intensifying its collection drive in order to maximize collections and minimizing the
adverse impact of growing NPAs.
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RISKS AND CONCERNS

The Company has put in place a mechanism to minimise operational risks through effective cotnrols ystems which call for constant review and an
ongoing internal audit. Our risk management framework aims at identifying the diverse risks faced by the Company and come up appropriate
mitigation strategies. Risk is an integral part of the financial/Chitty business. Credit risk arising out of delinquencies on account ofnon-performing
portfolio, operational risk arising out inadequate process or failed cotnrols to predefined processes, liquidtiy risk impacting flow of funds to the
organization and sector risk arising out of political considerations are some of the major risks faced by every organization.

The risk management function attempts to anticipate vulnerabilities at thet ransaction level or at the portfolio level through quantitative
examinations of embedded risks.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

HO-RO accounting software was rolled out successfully. RR software (CAMRA) is in the testing stage and would be rolled out during next fiscal. An
IT Consultant had been appointed to support development of our Mobile App, Securtiy layer, Customer Portal etc in CASBA and to prepare EOl with
regard to new software. Payment gateway faciltiy is also in the advance stage of completion and would be rolled out during next fiscal.

RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT -2005

The Right to Information Act itnroduced in 2005 had entered into a matured level now and the Company, as in the past is giving utmost importance
tot ransparency in its functioning and maximum information is made available in website. Accordingly, over the years an effectives ystem has
evolved for complying with the requirements of Right to Information Act - 2005. As required by the Act the Company has designated Assistant
Public Information Officers (APIO), Public Information Officers (PIO) and Appellate Officer(AO). At branches, Branch Managers are Public Information
officers for the Branch concerned and one of the Assistant Managers is designated as Assistant Public Information Officer. At SDT Offices also, PIOs
and APIOs are appointed. At all Regional Offices, Assistant General Mangers (Region) are PIOs and one Chief Manager/Senior Manager is designated
as APIO in each Regional Office. At Head Office of the Company, following officers are appointed as PlOs, APIO and Appellate Authortiy. The
Company is complying with the latest circulars and directions under the Act.

PIOs and APIO under Right to Information Act 2005 at HO as on 31.03.2020:

Hame Desipnation Ci=partment Status under BT |
CA 5 Bawath Chandran Gareral Manager Finance) ALCOUME o]
WP, Subseamiinian General Manager {Business] ifc Beidineds P
Fersonnel and Human Bewgeme
Prampadan A Depiuy Gensral Manager {FEHRI T Develapment Pl
lapagrakachan KV Daputy Ganeral Managar {IARY) 1T Intarnal Audit BVigdance L)
Pramopdan ., Asst, General I'.I'I-:trlgEljgjall L-e_EJ P
Misha s B Azt General MmgtrﬂlTI Information Techmluﬂl MO
Saajii Framcis ¥ Aggt, Genaral Manager (PRA} -In charge | Planmng KBusinags B L#]
Wijmyan A At General Manaper {Aeomeery) Rezouery (L]
Prince KT Senior Manager {GAD] Gansral Administrasion MO
C5 Ernil Alax Cornpany SeiTatary Secratarial PO Secraqariallb
WP Subramanian Managing Director Appellate Officer

According to the provisions of the Act, information should be furnished within 30 days from the date of receipt of request in normal cases. If not
satisfied with the reply of PIO, first appeal shall be filed with Appellate Officer (AO) and 2nd appeal lies with Information Commissioner. The

Company received a total of 380 requests under RTI Act at Head Office alone during the year 2019-20.
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The Pay Revision in KSFE is implemented once in every 5 years period as per the Long Term Settlements reached between Management and the
Unions/Associations representing Officers and Workmen. The settlements are implemented on getting approval from the Government. As the
period of existing Long Term Settlement expired on 31.07.2017, bilateral discussions were initiated with Unions/Associations for a new Pay Revision
settlement for the period 2017-2022.

HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT

The study for new staff norms was etnrusted with M/s KPMG India and they initiated discussions with the Management and Unions/Associations in
this regard.

As in previous years, the Promotion Test for 2019 was conducted in a time bound manner in association with M/s. CMD.

Organizations across the globe are currently functioning in a highly competitive environment characterized by rapidly changing technologies and
processes. Survival and growth of the companies are now fully dependent on high performance of employees to meet various challenges and
competition by promoting their potentialtiy/skill sets. Aiming tot ransform our company into a learning organization and to encourage a culture of
continuous learning among employees,t raining programmes were arranged for staff at supervisory and non-supervisory cadres on a regular basis.
The expertise and calibre of both internal and external faculties were utilized.

The Company also organizedt raining and development programmes focused on producing targeted and tangible results for the business. Our Gold
Loan portfolio manifested an upwardt rend during the fiscal year as a result of concetnrated efforts by modifying rules, reducing processing time as
well as itnroducing strategies for getting more visibiltiy of this very important segment of business. However, knowledge level of our staff about
various aspects of this potential loan segment like purtiy assessment, customer scrutiny, market fluctuations and information etc seemed to be an
impediment for faster growth of the Gold Loan portfolio. Keeping this in mind, the Company organized professional awareness programme in
association with CSB Bank to the Assistant Manager in charge of Gold of each branch and IAD Teams.

The Company made a total number of 67 appointments at various etnry cadre posts during the FY 2019-20. Besides, envisaging increasing the
elements of professionalism in the Company, two IT professionals and two Chartered Accountants were appointed in the Senior Manager cadre
through direct recruitment.

The total staff strength of the Company as on 31st March 2020 was 6571 numbers comprising 2113 Officers, 3092 Assistants and 839 Subordinate
Staff besides 527 Part-Time employees.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
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The requirement of disclosure under Section 134 of the Companies 2013 read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975, as
amended vide GSR 289 (E) dated March 31, 2011 Companies (Particulars of Employees) Amendments Rules, 2011 do not apply to any of the
Company's employees.
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MANPOWER

As on March 31, 2020, the Company had 6,571 personnel on its rolls. Cadre wise break up is as under:

Cadre Mars Women Total

Qlticars 1586 127 i113
| Clerks 1174 1918 oz
Offkce Atterdants 368 470 =38
Parnm-lime Sweapsr 19z 335 527
Total F121 3450 B5TL

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

The Corporate Social Responsibiltiy (CSR) Committee had been formed in conformtiy with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibiltiy Policy) Rules, 2014. The composition, terms of reference and attendance details of the CSR Committee
are incorporated in the Corporate Governance Report. The Annual Report on CSR activities for the year ended 31st March, 2020 is given separately
as "Annexure [I', forming part of this Report.

DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of Company comprises of 14 Directors including Chairman and Managing Director, as on 31.03.2020. There were changes in
the Board during the period under review. On Completion of his tenure, Mr. A Purushothaman, Managing Director was relieved from his duties on
February 29, 2020, accordingly Government vide G.O (Rt.) No.171/2020/Taxes dated 29.02.2020 has given full additional charge of Managing
Director to Mr. V.P. Subramanian.

CHANGE IN KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In view of the completion of tenure of Mr. A Purushothaman, Managing Director, Government vide G.O (Rt.) No.171/2020/Taxes dated 29.02.2020
has given full additional charge of Managing Director to Mr. V.P. Surbramanian There were no other changes in Key Managerial Personnel during the
FY 2019 - 20.

COMPLIANCE DEPARTMENT

The Company has institutionalized a strong compliance culture and mechanism across the Company, pursuant to its strategic goals oft ransparency
andt rust, among all its stakeholders. Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring compliance of various Acts, Rules and regulations especially
Companies Act, 2013. One of the key functions of this department includes, dissemination of key regulatory updates affecting the various business
verticals of the Company, review of processes from a regulatory compliance perspective, provide guidance on compliance-related matters, among
others.

INTERNAL AUDIT & VIGILANCE

There is as ystem in place for auditing all of the company's branches on a regular basis. The company has a team of 2 members that undertake
routine branch inspection at regular intervals. Aside from the foregoing, the company undertakes surprise inspection and special investigation
(Preventive Vigilance Team) at its branches on specific cases as the need arises. Internal audits at all branches (100%) for the reported year
(2019-2020) have been duly completed. Audit for the subsequent periods are progressing well. The audit of branches for the financial year 2020-21
is over and commenced the audit of 1st Half of the FY-2021-'22. The company is taking continuous steps to improve the internal cotnrols ystem and
to prevent instances of fraud/irregularities. It has continued its efforts to align all its processes and cotnrols with best practices.

The Company is committed to develop a culture wherein it is safe for all employees to raise concerns about any poor or unacceptable practice and
any event of misconduct. Accordingly, the Board of Directors has formulated a Whistle Blower Policy which is in compliance with the provisions of
Section 177 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. The policy provides for a framework and process whereby concerns could be raised by its employees
against any kind of discrimination, harassment, victimization or any other unfair practice being adopted against them. More details on the vigil
mechanism and the Whistle Blower Policy of your Company have been outlined in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this report.
The "KSFE Whistle Blower Policy" can be accessed on the Company's website at the links: http://ksfe.com/grievance/whistleblower.aspx.
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirements of Sec.134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors hereby declares that:

In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020, the applicable Accounting Standards

a)
except AS 17 had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures:

b) The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give at rue and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at the end of the financial year
2019-20 and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period.

9] The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities.

d) The Directors had prepared Annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020, on a going concern basis

e) The directors had devised propers ystems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that suchs ystems
were adequate and operating effectively and that

f) They have laid down internal financial cotnrols to be followed by the Company and such internal financial cotnrols are adequate
and operating effectively;

AUDITORS

The following firms of Chartered Accountants were appointed as Auditors of the Company for its Head Office/Regional Office/Branches
for the financial year 2019-20 by the office of Comtproller and Auditor General of India, New Delhi:
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EXPLANATION FOR AUDITORS' COMMENTS IN THE REPORT

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

Non reconciliation of Inter Branch accounts, Suspense Accounts and Other Accounts:

Substantial progress could be attained under this category as WUMT, Xpress money, HOC(IB) & Bhadratha Deposit Account could
be completely reconciled. New ROC had reconciled on current year basis. HOC (Gen) accounts i.e reconciliation between branches
and HO till FY 2019-20 has been subsequently reconciled.

Steps have already been initiated for identifying balances in general suspense account andt ransferring the same to respective
accounts.

Strict directions has been issued to all branches for clearing off all un identified debits and credits as appearing in the bank
reconciliation statement in a time bound manner and significant progress could be attained in this area during FY 2019-20.

Excess provision for impairment of financial assets and non-recognition of interest income on Non
Performing Assets as required by Ind AS-109:

The impairment allowance calculated for expected credit loss on loan portfolio and the provisions calculated on non-performing
assets in accordance with NPA guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India were compared and it was noticed that provision as
per RBI norms were higher. As a matter of prudence, caution and conservatism, provision has been created in the accounts as per
RBI prudential norms on provisioning.

Prudential norms of RBI with regard to provisioning requirement is not being adopted for chitty & prized default in chitties arising
out of the peculiar nature of chit scheme.

Provision for financial impact of fraud identified during the year:

The Company is making 100% write-off on all crystallized and irrecoverable losses, if any, as ascertained by the Management and
approved by the Audit Committee and Board. As per the policy consistently being followed by the Company, any loss arising out
of deliberate fraud / misappropriation committed by the employees would be recovered from them either out of their salary or
from their terminal benefit after conducting due disciplinary proceedings. Hence, generally 100% write-off/provision is not made
in such cases as the amount is recovered from the officials concerned.

In case of fraud/irregularities committed by public, agents etc, the Company ascertains the loss, if any, through special audit and
appropriate action including legal action and revenue recovery action, etc is initiated to recover any such losses incurred from the
concerned, presently provision @ 50% is being created on the amount of fraud/misappropriation identified/reported during the
year.

Amount payable to removed subscribers not deposited in separate bank account:

Company had issued strict directions to branches for paying the removed subscriber cotnribution before the next instalment as
far as possible. If it cannot be paid, such amount should bet ransferred to a separate bank account as prescribed by the circular.
Also reminded branches while issuing the closing circular of every year.

Excess recognition of deferred tax asset as per Ind AS-12 - Income Taxes:

Company had recognised deferred tax based on the tax effect on the timing difference between accounting income and taxable
income. However, as per audit comments tax impact has to be calculated on the difference between the carrying amounts of
assets. The same will be looked upon and necessary corrections be effected in the books if found necessary.

Effect of pay revision on gratutiy and earned leave salary not provided as per Ind AS-19- Employee benefits:

The wage settlement of Company employees happens once in every 5 years and wage settlement was due for revision from
01.08.2017. Management conducted a series of discussions with representatives of the Unions of both Officers and Workmen on
the new Charter of Demands as submitted by them and consensus was arrived at.




mm—=. ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

OI(SFE

Government had agreed to the settlement and vide Government order No. GO (MS) No. 20/2021/Taxes, dated 19.02.2021 issued for implementation
of the revised pay scales in Company on the basis of the above, Company revised pay scales of the employees from 31.03.2021 onwards. We had
provided the pay revision arrear from 01.08.2017 to 31.03.2020 in the accounts for FY2019-20.

However, actuarial valuation for arriving at corpus shortfall for gratutiy & earned leave for FY 2019-20 was already conducted and the shortfall
amount for gratutiy was made good. The actuarial valuation on the basis of revised pay structure had been carried out in FY 2020-21 for ascertaining
the corpus shortfall.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

The Company has zero tolerance approach towards any action on the part of any executive/employee which may fall under the ambit of 'Sexual
Harassment' at workplace, and is fully committed to uphold and maintain the digntiy of every woman staff working in the Company. An Internal
Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. The Committee provides for protection
against sexual harassment of women at workplace and for prevention and redressal of such complaints. All the employees (permanent, cotnractual,
temporary,t rainees) are covered under this policy.

During the year under review one such case was filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

Number of complaints pending as at the beginning of the financial year - Nil
Number of complaints filed during the financial year - 1
Number of complaints pending as at the end of the financial year - Nil

Nature of action taken by the employer: Administrative/disciplinary action taken.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There have been no related patryt ransactions between the Company and the Directors, the Management or the relatives except for those disclosed
in the financial statements. Accordingly, particulars of cotnracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) alongwith the
justification for entering into such cotnract or arrangement in Form AOC-2 does not form part of this report.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the financial year 2019-20, Board of Directors met on eleven occasions, the details of which are given in the Corporate Governance Report.
The intervening gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are provided in the
Standalone Financial Statements

PARTICULARS REGARDING CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO PURSUANT TO SUB SECTION (3) (M) OF SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The particulars relating to energy conservation, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo as required to be disclosed under
section134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, your Company had not engaged in any
activtiy relating to consumption of energy or technology absorption. Your Company has undertaken various initiatives for energy conservation at
its premises, though the operations of the Company are not energy sensitive, all attempts are being made to reduce energy consumption to the
maximum extent possible. However, the Company follows a practice of purchasing and using energy efficient eletcrical or eletcronic equipment
and gadgets for its operations. Additionally, optimal use of technology may also lead to substantial conservation of energy. We further report that
there were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year.

@)
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Company recognizes the importance of good corporate governance. The endeavor of the Company is not only to comply with the regulatory
requirements but also to practice good Corporate Governance that lays strong emphasis on integrtiy,t ransparency and overall accountabiltiy. A
separate section on Corporate Governance is annexed to and forms part of this report.

EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to sub-section 3(a) of Section 134 and sub-section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 120f the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 the etxracts of the Annual Return as at March 31, 2020 inform no. MGT-9 is attached separately as
Annexure |.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report is attached to and forms an integral part of the Report of the Board of Directors.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There are no material changes affecting the financial position of the company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the
company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There have been no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts ort ribunals impacting Company's going concern status and
Company's operations in future.
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FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2020
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the

Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014

l. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1l CiN UESA2IKL] 96560002205
3 Registration Date 06-11-65
3] Mame of the Company KERALN STATE FRMANCIAL ENTERPRISES LIMITED
4| Categary/Sub-categony of the Company arry fimited by slsares | State Government Cam
5 Address of the Registered Office SiContact detaijls P B NQ 510, 'BHADRATHA', MLUSEUN ROAD
THRISSLIR - GROOZ0, KERALS STATE,
Phgne; Q487 = 2332255, Fax: DART = 2336237
P L SRR RS T, LT =i LY f 1
&  Whether listed company NQ
7| Name, Acdress &Contact detals of the Reglstrar & Trarsfar Agent, (f i
LI 2
1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities cotnributing 10.00 % or more of the
total turnover of the company shall be stated)
L . . % o tofal wirnover of the
5l Mo Kame and Oescription of main productsfservices NIC Code of the Product/service® company
1 Financial S=rvice Activities A0S0 104

* As per National Industrial Classification 2008 — Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation.

L. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S1.Mo. Hama and address of the comgany | CIMSGLN | Holding/ subsidiargfAssaciate | %of sharesheld | spolicablie Secton
1 —NIL -

@)




ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 m—

OI(SFE

Iv. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equtiy Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equtiy)

(i) Category-wise Share Holding:-

Mo, of Shares heid at she Begireing of the pear [A5 on | Mo, of Shares held 24 the nd of the wear [Ason 31- |
1-April-7019] Felarch-20204 g

during
%ol Total e
Demat | Prysical Total ¥ rema Physical o | Tl e

Shaies Fhares

Caimpory of Shar

&, Fromahers
| L] Indass
af Indiwid usl FHUF a . . - H " .
) Critral Gond . . R F - _ N 2
] State Govelsh MIL EE g R 39597398 10} MIL T J993998 104 (L]
o] et Ceap, : 5 ; 1 : X
i Banks | Fl = = a = H . a
1] finy other_. .
Sub-toral (B - MIL S ores So953a8 BIE 1] ML 90938 9oer3aaE 1040 (R LA
| ¥] Foreign
aj MRIs-Indhrkdusls - E - - H i & B
ElOther Indhwiduafs E - - : - 4
| Bodies Cons - B a - z - . .
o) Banks { Fl - - - e ' " -
q!lAn:E;ﬂhnr i - - B = : A =
Sub-total ({35 - - - - = = L -
Totsl Sharuholdieg of Promoftan

4] = Af1) & A2}

B Public Sharsbaiding
1. Inastiwalons .
ap Mduad Furds s - H F i . H ~
o) BanksfFl
| Cengral Goan = - - - x " 5
] Stabe Gowt|s| - . f 3 : -
) Wenture Cagdtal Funds - - - F . A _ N
f] Irmaarance Companas - - . E . - -
gj Fls - - - - - r . = =

ML FEIa5g SaFEEaR ELe ] NIL TG ARFIgan 100 o0

hi Foreign Ventere Capital Funds - . ¥ - - - - *

i) Diehees s pecify)

Sub-eotal 8111k
2. Mon-brwtituticne

A} Bodii=s Carp.
1 ind @ = r = r = v = -
fi} Owerseas & . = : - . "
o] Individualks
Bindiwidus sharehakgers hoiding
rcemanal share capetsl upte: Ha, 1 MIL ] F - HIL a2 F -
lakh
HE IO kebcdaal Sharenedd ers hiokling
reiwinal share CapiH b esoess of .
Bt 1 ki
£l hers |wpecily] 2 = 4 F = + F +
Mia Reskdent Indione = - = - J - r =
Crprseds Corporate Bodies
Forsipn f_i‘il_ll:_lﬂﬁ- = - = F : ha = = -
Clapring Members - - - - - - -
Trusty - - - B . . - -
Foreipn Bodies -0 R = ¥ = £ = - h = -
Sub-Eotal (B}{2)- HIL 2 2 - NIL 2 3 - -
Totsd Public Sharsholding
(Bj=(a|{1)s (B){1)
. Shares held by Custesiian Tor
GRS B ADRY

Graed Total |A=E=L) MIL 10000050 OGN0 10000 MIL LOOOHE TOOODOED 1083, (41 o.11

MIL i z - L11% 2 i T o
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters
Shargholding at the beginning of the yoar Sharaholding at the end of the year
st ‘Sof Shares #eof Shares % change in
Mo, Sharefindder’s Mame Mo.of  |% of total Shares Fledged/ Mo.of | % of total Shares Fledged/ sharshalding
Shares | of the company | encumbered to Shares | of the company | encumbered to | during the year
tatal shares total shares
1| Governar ol Kerals 5 R%aR THE - T aa 104 2 Y]
(iii) Change in Promoters' Shareholding:
Shareholding at the beginning of the Cumulative Sharsholding
:':- i ‘.E:ﬂf Ish af - ::f'!. ish of
total shares total shares
Mo. of shares the company Mo. of shares the y
At tha beginning of the year EEEEES D) 1 EEEEEE] 10K
Increase due to allotment - - - -
|t the end of the year . : 9999558 100
(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
-NIL-
Sharcholding at the beginning: Cumulative Sharcholding during the
;:;. For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders “'“‘;‘i:' —— "":'u{ —
tota res total shares
Mo. of shares the company Mo of shares the ny
(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Shareholding at the beginning of the Cumulative Shareholding during the
5L | Sharehalding of each Directors and each Kay yuar Year
Mo, Managerial Personnal i
M. CEihaet % of total shares of Mo of sbent % of total shares of
the company the cormpany

1|Rajagopal Remesachandran Nair— Director
At the beginning of the year 1 0.00001 1]
Date wise Increass/Decrease n Sharoholding
during the year.

41 the gnd of the yaar 1 0,00001 ]
2|Mind ¥ R= Ddrector
At the beginning of the year | 1 0,00001
Date wise Increase/Decrease i Shareholding
during the year

At the end of the year 1 0.00001 1]
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INDEBTEDNESS
(Indebtedness of the Company, includes interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.)
Secured Loans Unsecured
d Unsecwred Deposits R Total indebtedness
Indebiednass al the beginning of the financial year
i1 Prirecipad Arioiang ¥2,42,568 % 13,21,859 - % 15,64,427
i) Interast dus but not paid
i) Inferest scorued but not due - = 3 -
Totad {i+i+i) %2,42,568 %13,21,859 - % 15,64,427
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
* Addifion ®30,000 ¥1,81,738.23 - 1,51.738.23
* Reductian %6,224.41 - - (6,224.41)
Mot Ch %3,775.59 %1,81,738.23 : %1 85 513 82
Indetitedness ol the end of the inandial year
i] Prirecipad Arnciant %2,45,343.59 %15,03,597.23 - ¥17,49,940.82
W] Interast duss but not paid :
] Inferest accrued but not dwe . - -
]'.“_ﬂ “MM L 343,59 ¥ 15,03,597.23 5 317,49,940.82

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
I'i. Particulars of Remumeration ”'m A Purashothaman Taotal
1) Grose Salary % 2,40,000/- B0, 65 975 LEEN R e B
|a) Sabary as per pravisions contsined in
section 17[1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 i .
| Value of perguisites ufs 1702 Income-1ax
Aet, 1961 :
i} Prafits in lew of salary under section 17{3]
Income- tax Act, 1961 - Borws :
7| 5tack Option = - =
5| Saal Equity - -
A Commission = N -
5pSiting fee ¥ 45,700/- - “"IEJWJ'-
Mehile Allewance - . .
nFier %1,81,192/- 5 1Q 029, %6,99,215/-
Total (A} ¥ 4,66,892/- EA5,.83 008/ - e, 50, B9~
Coling as par this At MA M T
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B. Remuneration to other directors:
(Amount in INR)
A. Independent Directors |
sL Fee for attending
’ Name Board / Others, please specify Total
No. . .
Committee Meetings
None
Total (1) NIL
B. Other Non-Executive Directors
Others, please specify
SL. . (Mobile/Travel
No. Name Sitting Fees Allowance, Festival Total
Allowance etc.)
1 |Adv. VK Prasad 52,600.00 1,98,673.00 2,51,273.00
2 |Adv. Reji Zachariah 91,800.00 1,88,156.00 2,79,956.00
3 |R Rajagopal 33,900.00 54,375.00 88,275.00
4 |Mini VR 24,900.00 47,300.00 72,200.00
5 |Vijayan Cherukara 27,600.00 1,67,896.00 1,95,496.00
6 [R Mohammed Sha 30,900.00 1,43,361.00 1,74,261.00
7 |D Narayana 13,100.00 85,547.00 98,647.00
8 |K N Gangadharan 26,400.00 1,16,951.00 1,43,351.00
9 [PV Unnikrishnan 29,100.00 94,543.00 1,23,643.00
10 |P K Anandakuttan 19,300.00 1,05,588.00 1,24,888.00
11 |P C Pillai - 74,957.00 74,957.00
12 [K N Satheesh IAS - 2,090.00 2,090.00
13 [A Alexander IAS 4,600.00 29,900.00 34,500.00
14 |Aravindakshan Nair 6,700.00 37,977.00 44,677.00
Total (2) 17,08,214.00
Total (B) = (1 +2) 17,08,214.00
Total Managerial Remuneration* 54,17,978.00
Overall Ceiling as per the Act N. A.
* Total Managerial Remuneration being A + B
C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
5l Key Managerial
e Parkhoulars of Remunaration ey Total
Ermiil Alex
{Company Secretary)
1 Grods salary % 8,57,847/- % 8,57,847/-
[a] Salary as per provisbons contained in section 17(1) of
the Incorme-tay Act, 1961
() Walue of parqubites w's 17(2] Incoma-tax Act, 1961
|2} Prafits in Bew of salary under section 17| 3) Incom et
At 1551
2| 5tock Option
3|_Swr.'al: Eguitl.l -
&} Comendssion :
Si0thars
Tatal % 8,57,847/- % 8,57,847/-

@)
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Vil PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

There were no penalties/punishments/compounding of offences for the year ending 31st March 2020.

Detalls of
Pemabtyf Authority Appeal madn,
Type Em“ HI ﬁ o wlll = [Pt bervsis vl IRE f WCLT) W any [give
Compounding DOURTH Detalls)
fees imposed
A CORIPEN'Y
Panalty e
Punishment —
Coampourding
B. MRECTORS
Panalty ]
Pynishment _
Covnpourding ]
C. OTHER OFFICERS 1IN GEFAULT _._,d--""-
Panalty
Funisthment _'_,.'-'-"'"_
Cosmpoarding

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

(Sd/-)

K. Varadarajan
Chairman

DIN: 08157496

(Sd/-)
V.P.Subramanian
Managing Director
DIN:08719925

Date: 04.02.2022
Place: Thrissur
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Annexure - I

KSFE CSR Policy:

Corporate Social Responsibiltiy (CSR) is the Company's commitment to its stakeholders to conduct business in an economically, socially and
environmentally sustainable manner that ist ransparent and ethical. KSFE is committed to undertake CSR activities in accordance with the
provisions of Section 135 of the Indian Companies Act, 2013 and related Rules. KSFE believes that corporate development has to be inclusive and
every corporate has to be responsible for the development of a just and humane socitey that can build a national enterprise. KSFE commits itself to
cotnribute to the socitey in ways possible for the organization and has set up its core CSR team, as a means for fulfilling this commitment.

Overview of Activities:

In line with the CSR policy and in accordance with Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013, KSFE undertake various activities which have significant
impact on the socitey. These activities include:

> Making available safe drinking water to Schools, Hospitals and other Institutions

Constructing Toilets and Urinals in Government and aided schools

Providing Generator, Computer and equipments, buses fort ransportation of students to schools

Providing tables, chairs and other equipments for schools, Anganavadis for mid-day meal distribution and Libraries.

Provide Vehicles, wheel chairs and other equipments to Old age Homes and Institutions for the mentally challenged children

Providing Dialysis Units and other medical equipments to Government Hospitals

YYVY VY VY

Providing Ambulances to hospitals and street lights in Panchayath areas.
» Providing sports equipments to schools and supporting libraries.

Company's CSR mission is to cotnribute to the social and economic welfare of the communtiy. Through these CSR spent, KSFE touch upon the lives
of many. The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy follows CSR objectives and Policy of the Company

Composition of CSR Committee:

The company understands its responsibiltiy towards the socitey and environment in which it operates. The company has constituted Corporate
Social Responsibiltiy Committee at the board level to monitor the CSR activities

Members of the Committee as on 31.03.2020 were:

1. Sri. Peelipose Thomas : Chairman
2. Adv. Reji Zachariah : Member
3.Adv.V K Prasad : Member
4. Sri. Vijayan Cherukara : Member
5.Sri. R Mohammad Sha : Member
6. Sri. P K Anandakuttan : Member
7. Sri. Purushothaman A : Member

The composition is in accordance with relevant provision of Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibiltiy Policy) Rules,

2014.
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Average net profit (Profit before Tax) of the Company for the last three financial years (In Rupees Crores):

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-13 Avarage Net Profit Befors Tan_|
- 120,67 17551 |
Prescribed CSR Expenditure:
a) 2% average net profit of ? 175.89 Crores :¥3,52,00,000/-
b) Amount unspent, for the Financial Year 2018-19 :312,731/-
<) Total amount to be spent for the Financial Year 2019-20 :3,52,12,731/-

Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:
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DETAILS OF CSR SPENT DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Total amount to be spent for the financial year: ¥3,52,12,731/- (includes brought forward unspent amount of ¥12,731/- for the financial year
2018-19)

Particulars for FY 2019-20

Particular Amount
_L_l'lb-:I:'II‘: aireuril 20LE-19 T12. 731,
[ Cartnbaution far The Year W3 53,00,0004¢
Tatal amerit to hn_:pnnt L4 !.1-1.]_1_.?3-11"-
Total femaunt Sp=nt 330 0e 5T
Amaunt Unspent in £Y 2019-24 B3 154

Company's CSR mission is to cotnribute to the social and economic welfare of the people of the State. The Company had spent a sum of ¥
33,004,572/- (94%) this year towards CSR as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. Your Company is committed to increase its CSR impact by
selecting projects that have long term sustainabiltiy and are socially relevant. Through these CSR spent, KSFE was able to touch the lives of many.
An amount of ¥22,08,159/- could not be utilized during the period under review. The amount could not be utilized because of the pandemic
imposed restrictions in the State which severely affected free movement of men and material. The unspent amount would be spent in the FY
2020-21.

The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with the CSR objectives and Policy of the
Company.
(5d/-)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

K.Varadarajan
Chairman
DIN:08157496

V.P.Subramanian
Managing Director
DIN:08719925

Date: 04.02.2022
Place: Thrissur
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

KSFE LIMITED - AN OVERVIEW

Kerala State Financial Enterprises Limited (KSFE, the Company) is a leading Miscellaneous Non-Banking Financial Company (MNBC)
catering to the financial requirements of people belonging to the lower socio-economic classes, particularly in rural and semi-urban
areas of State of Kerala and those of NRI/NRK residing outside the State. The Company concetnrates more on its chitty business and
offers other financial services viz Personal Loan, Housing Loan, Vehicle Loan and Term Deposits etc. It is one of the largest profit making
PSU's in Kerala. It continues to lead the chitty sector in the state of Kerala as market leader. The company has grown both in terms of
value and volume during the year under review. KSFE consolidated its position as leading MNBC of the coutnry and the market leader
in chitty business in Kerala. Company's basic attempt was tot ransform the economic life of the people who are otherwise sidelined and
ensure inclusive growth. During the last 5 decades of operation the company had achieved a dominant market position in areas viz.
personal loan, gold loan, housing loan etc in addition to chitty, the flagship business of the Company. The Company has consistently
maintained a rapid pace of growth, demonstrating its abiltiy to scale up and to leverage on its well-established brand name.

ECONOMIC REVIEW

India as a part of world, as well as a distinguished enttiy suffered many ups and downs in the economy during this FY, due to the
changes brought down by political outfits. In India it is almost due to the continuation of a Govt. having a far right wing policy, which
certainly affected the economy especially with the activities like Demonetization and itnroduction of GST. Both are not new for this FY,
but the effect of which is hitting the economic nucleus more than last FY.

Reserve Bank of India in its annual report on bank also dwelled on this slow down. "The global slowdown has impeded bank lending
worldwide even as heightened financial fragilities, including elevated debt level, have initiated into pervasive risk aversion. Among
emerging market economics profitabiltiy of banks has been dented by weak loan growth and high delinquencies".

This is more worrisome as it happened at a time when the recent improvements in asset qualtiy and profitabiltiy of the banking sector
are at a nascent stage and capital ratios of public sector banks shred up due to recapitalization by the Govt. Notwithstanding the
resolution through insolvency and bankruptcy mode the menace of NPA remains alarmingly high.

The report somehowt ried to illustrate the picture of NBFC, with a vision to strengthen the liquidtiy frame work of NBFC. According to
the report the four pillars of the supervision are 1. On- site examination, 2. Off-site surveillance, 3. Market Intelligence and 4. Audit
Reports. As like press is the fifth pillar to democracy, the fifth pillar of NBFC s the periodic interaction with stake holders like credit rating
agencies and banks have large exposure to NBFCs. Though KSFE is practicing the fundamentals of these pillars, to the maximum
possible extent, still a lot needs to be done in this regard so as to have a cutting edge.

It is important to recognize that the challenges faced by some of the NBFC's were reflexive of inherent fragilities rather than merely
liquidtiy crunch. Consequently financial markets have been discriminating between strong NBFCs and those having perceptible
weaknesses. Thus the need to strengthen the aforesaid pillars in order to become a strong NBFC is our urgent task.

Economy was going through a more than anticipated slowdown, as weakness in the real sector and stress in the financial sector were
acting together to bring down the growth numbers. This deceleration in the economy was led by a sharp slowdown in gross fixed
capital formation and sluggishness in private final consumption expenditure. A fall in major economic indicators such as industrial
production, exports, bank credit, tax collections, freight movement, automobiles sales and eletcrictiy production in addition to slowing
global growth and uncertainties emanating fromt rade conflict were pointing towards an inarguable slackening of growth. It is of
utmost priortiy that Governments at the Cetnre and States need to be etxremely zealous through fiscal support to recoup the losses by
supporting vulnerable firms and restore normalcy in the economy.
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The business attainment levels were at satisfying levels as target in chitty portfolio was attained and good progress was made in Gold
Loan business. Gold portfolio reached all time high and made a steady progress. House loan portfolio grew on a year on year basis. The
makeover to smart offices progressed considerably in the last FY, with around 180 branches renovated to be smart with identified
pattern with a customer friendly environment. And as a jewel in the crown our corporate office was also renovated within a record time.
It becomes a building under green protocol, and thus one of the model corporate office and solar panels which makes it zero-energy
building

Review Company's Financial Performance

For the FY 2019-20 the Company has posted a profit after tax of ¥72.79 crores as against ¥77.78 crores during the previous year. The
Gross income registered an increase of 7% at ¥ 2827 crores as against % 2635 crores of previous years. The earnings per share stood at
%68.37/-.

Opportunities and Threats

The Covid-19 pandemic has brought the world into etxremely difficult and largely choppy waters. Many coutnries are facing
multi-layered crisis comprising of health shocks, domestic economic dsiruptions, plunging external demand, capital flow reversals and
breakdown in commodetiy prices. Indian economy has been experiencing significant slowdown over the past few quarters. Investment
and consumption demand had been languishing and a number of stimulus measures have been taken to bring back the economy on
a growth path. There was a strong hope of recovery in the last quarter of FY20. However, the Covid-19 pandemic has made recovery
etxremely difficult in the near to medium term. The outbreak has presented fresh challenges for the Indian economy, causing severe
dsiruptive impact on both demand and supply side elements, which has the potential to derail India's growth story.

The advantages of Chitty Business arising to the Company are (1) reputation and brand image of the Company as the market leader for
its chitty products and (2) financial backbone of the Company by helping to cotnribute significantly. The threats to the segment are (1)
outbreak of pandemic diseases like Covid-19 requiring lock down of operations affecting conduct of auction (2) unhealthy competition
from private chitty players and (3) lack of technological support for conducting online auctions and (4) Company is facing stiff
competition from commercial banks and NBFCs in retail loan segment and it is a threat for its advance portfolio particularly to Gold loan
and personal loan schemes.

Review of KSFE's Overall Business:

The overall business achieved in the FY 2019-20 was 245040 crores as against the business volume of FY 2018-19 amounting to 339166
crores representing growth of 15%.

Chitty business achieved in FY 2019-20 was % 23067 crores (including Pravasi Chitty) as against 20679 Crores of FY 2018-19 signifying
a growth of 11.5 %. Monthly chitty business of ¥2096 Crores as compared to ¥1841 crores of FY 2018-19 thereby registering a growth of
13.5%. During the course of the year, coinciding with the festival season of Onam and as part of golden jubilee year celebrations, the
Company launched its branded Chitties campaign "Golden Jubilee Chitty 2019"during June - February 2020 with attractive prizes. The
campaign was a grand success as the Company was able to achieve business volume of INR 684 crores during the campaign period as
against the campaign target of INR 700 crores. No special campaign was conducted during Christmas/New year season this year too.
Chitty business during the year got a fillip through newly launched Multi division chitty. New chitty business expected to be attained
during the current fiscal is about INR 600 crores against the target INR 700 Cr.

Advances amounting to ¥ 7177Crores and Deposit business to the tune of 14621 Crores were achieved during the FY 2019-20 as
against the advance and deposit business of ¥ 5547 Crores and % 12939 Crores respectively for FY 2018-19.

The total deposits outstanding amounting to 314621 crores for 2019-20 is expected to be at ¥17250 crores for the year 2020-21
representing a growth of over 18%
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During 2020-21 the Company intends to further strengthen the basic tenets of appropriate Asset Liabiltiy Management (ALM) policy,
for managing its deposit & advances portfolio. The Company has already requested the Government for suitably increasing guarantee
limit. Focus will be given to broaden the spetcrum of low-cost fund, such as Sugama Deposits. Students' deposit is also envisaged.

Chitty Business:

The Company intends to continue the established pattern of its branded chitties campaigns (laced with attractive prizing schemes and
value additions) at appropriate time during the current FY also. The prizing scheme & value additions would be decided upon
subsequently considering the markett rends and preferences from time to time. Preference will be given on monthly chitties of
subscription 1 lakh or below to cotnrol defaults in chitty in a desired manner.

Advance Business:

The changes/modifications brought in by the Company during current year have provided a strong platform for significant increase in
our advances portfolio. The Company proposes to strengthen its chitty based loan schemes, gold loan and Housing finance scheme in
the next year. The Company intends to suitably revise its lending schemes and itnroduce more attractive schemes which will support
weaker sections and also cater to the loan requirement of affluent class.

New Initiatives:

a) Gold loan Scheme

The total target for the current year is INR 5000 Crores with a growth of 150% over the last year's business. We propose
to continue exclusive advertisement campaign in audio/ visual/ print media for pushing the product. Outdoor media viz.
Hoardings, advertisement on medians/ bus shelters etc is also proposed to continue for greater visibiltiy for our product.

The diversification of this product is also envisaged during this FY in order to include a larger segment of customers, thus
ensuring the securtiy & non-exploitation of common public from the unscrupulous private firms. Two main schemes
envisaged are Gold Overdraft & Gold Loan under EMI scheme. Gold OD is similar to our Sugama Akshaya OD scheme in
which OD is allowed against the Gold securtiy only. EMI scheme is intended for certain period in which the loanee has to
remit Equated Monthly Installments

In this era of women empowerment, and also as women -friendly institution with majortiy of women staff, KSFE is
envisaging a Gold Loan product exclusively for women, perhaps for first time in Kerala. The scheme under preparation
will offer a comparatively lesser interest gold loan for women in general.

b) Sugama Akshaya OD for all Customers.

The major segment under this scheme happens to be our employees and as such not much growth was recorded under
this category. Infact figures under this scheme shows a decline during two consecutive years, due to the tendency of
retaining funds in the SA OD accounts. So, to achieve our target in this portfolio, we have to redefine the target
customers. Although our CD ratio doesn't show much improvement in the recent past, we have wider scope for this loan
scheme in all manners and we tend to spread Sugama Akshaya Overdraft scheme to all segments of public, with
stipulated conditions such as repaying capactiy, sufficient securtiy etc and as such a venture will bring a new segment of
people especiallyt raders, householders and other groups under the umbrella of KSFE.

<) Mobilisation of Sugama Deposits using Agents

Sugama Deposits are somewhat similar to savings deposits of banks with higher interest rates. It is one of the most cost
effective deposit and could be extended to a large number of people using our agency network. More over we can
penterate in to common public by establishing an agency Network like Mahila Pradhan Agents etc.
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Internal Cotnrol Systems and their adequacy

The Company has adequate policies and procedures in place for its current size as well as the future growing needs. These policies and
procedures play a pivotal role in the deployment of the internal cotnrols. They are regularly reviewed to ensure both relevance and
comprehensiveness, and compliance is ingrained into the management review process. There are adequate internal cotnrols ystems in
vogue in all spheres of operations of the Company so as to ensure saftey to its assets against loss. These internal cotnrols are designed
in such a way to ensure adequate accounting and financial cotnrols. The internal cotnrols ystem is being continuously reviewed by the
Management and adequate steps are taken for improvement, wherever felt. Internal audits are being carried out regularly in all the
Units. The internal audit reports and the corrective actions taken for the shortcomings reported in those reports, if any, are being
discussed in the meetings of the Audit Committee.

Human Resources and the infrastructure development

Caution

As on March 31, 2020, the company had 6571 personnel on its rolls. Human Resources policies and practices of the company focus on
attracting, motivating and retaining qualified and skilled manpower. The Company believes that people perform to the best of their
capabiltiy in organisations to which they feel genuinely associated. The Company focuses on widening organisational skills and
improving organisational effectiveness by having a competent and engaged workforce. Our people are our partners in progress, and
employee empowerment has been critical in driving our organisation's growth to the next level.

The views and statements expressed or implied in the Management Discussion and Analysis are based on the current available
information, experience and our own judgement. Actual results may vary significantly from the forward-looking statements contained
in this document due to various risks and uncertainties. The Company's actual performance may differ as a result of unforeseen events
on which the management has no direct cotnrol.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

(Sd/-)

K. Varadarajan
Chairman

DIN: 08157496
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Company's philosophy on corporate governance

Corporate Governance philosophy of the Company is based on the principles of equtiy, fairness,t ransparency, spirit of law and honest
communication. Company believes that sound Corporate Governance is vital to retain public confidence, stakeholders't rust and
ensure efficient working and proper conduct of the business of the Company. Development of Corporate Governance guidelines is a
continuous process which evolves over a period of time and undergoes changes to suit the changing times and needs of the business,
socitey and the nation.

Board of Directors

The composition of the Board has been in compliance with the Companies Act and Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company. As on 31.03.2020 the Board of Directors of the Company comprised 14 Directors including Chairman. Except Managing
Director, the rest of the Directors are non-executive Directors. The Board of Directors has been functioning in a professional andt
ransparent manner.

The Board invariably meets in every month and evaluates the performance of the Company. All major policy and business decisions of
the Company are placed before the Board and decisions are taken after due deliberations and with mutual consensus. The Board at
various occasions has constituted various sub-committees to monitor the progress of various projects/schemes itnroduced by the
Company. The Company adheres to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued there under and Secretarial
Standards with respect to convening and holding the meetings of the Board of Directors, its Committees and the General Meetings of
the shareholders of the Company.

During the year 2019-20 the Board met on 11 occasions. The dates of Board meetings were:- 25.04.2019, 30.05.2019, 11.06.2019,
12.07.2019, 27-08-2019, 05.10.2019, 06.11.2019, 10.11.2019, 20.11.2019, 18.12.2019 and 22.02.2020. Details of attendance are given

below;
sl. : Mo. of meetings held during the
HNa Wy of Do yiar [afber initial sppalrtment) Moo waings stben ded
1fAdv. Peelipate Thamas 11 11
21571, & Purushotharman 11 11
385ri, KM Satheesh, 1AS 11 i}
5mit. Manl VR 11 ]
Li5ri K Rajagopal 11 4
Bl A, Reji Zachariah 11 11
TlAd, v K Prasad 11 10
BESri. P O Pillai 11 10
af5rl. Muhammed Sha 11 11
10855, PV Unnikrishnan 11 7
11§5ri. K N Gangadharan 11 10
12{5r, B Marayana 11 ]
1350, P K Anandakutltan 11 7
14451, Wijawan Cherukara 11 11
15051 K Aravindakshan Mair 11 4
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The Company has an independent Audit Committee in compliance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Audit
Committee provides direction to the audit functions and monitors the qualtiy of Internal and Statutory audit. The scope / responsibilities of the
Audit Committee include the following:

Audit Committee of the Board

1. Review of internal audit function, including structure of the internal audit department, staffing and seniortiy of the official
heading the department, reporting structure and frequency of internal audit.

2. To review the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditor in to matters where there is a suspected fraud or
irregulartiy or a failure of internal cotnrols ystems of a material nature and reporting the matter to Board.

3. Discussing with internal auditors/AG's Auditors, any significant findings and follow-up thereon.

4. Reviewing with the management, external and internal auditors, the adequacy of internal cotnrols ystems and recommending
improvements to the management.

5. Discussing with external auditors before the audit commences the nature and scope of audit as well as conduct post-audit
discussions to discuss any areas of concern.

6. Reviewing the Company's financial risk management policies.

7. Overseeing the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial
statements are correct, sufficient and credible.

8. Approving the fees for non-audit services provided by the firms of statutory auditors.
9. Reviewing with the management the periodic financial statements, before submission to the Board, focusing primarily to;
(a) Any changes in accounting policies and practices.
(b) Major accounting etnries based on exercise of judgment by management.
(c) Qualifications in draft audit report.
(d) Significant adjustments arising out of audit.
(e) Compliance with accounting standards.

The Audit Committee of the Company consisted three Directors; Sri. A Alexander, IAS, Sri. R Rajagopal, Smt. MiniV R and Sri. PC Pillai were
the members of the Committee during the period. A total of 4 meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year on 20.08.2019,
27.09.2019, 18.12.2019 and 28.02.2020. Details of attendance are given below;

5l N, af meetings kel dusing the =
ey Mame of Direcior ] sl i s Mo, of mesetings attended
115, & Alkemancer 4 1
2|5r1. ® Raja | 4 4
Alsmt. Mini VR 4 =
455, BC Pillai i 1

The Board has accepted all the recommendations of the Audit Committee. The disclosures made herein shall bet reated as disclosures required to
be made under sub-section (8) of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Corporate Social Responsibiltiy (CSR) Committee

The Corporate Social Responsibiltiy (CSR) Committee has been formed in conformtiy with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013read with the

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibiltiy Policy) Rules, 2014.
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The members of the Committee as on 31.03.2020 were:

1.

Adv. Peelipose Thomas
Adv. Reji Zachariah
Adv.V K Prasad

Sri. Vijayan Cherukara
Sri. R Mohammad Sha
Sri. P K Anandakuttan

Sri. Purushothaman A

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 <m—

Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Member

The Committee's terms of reference include the following:

*

formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR Policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the
Company as specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013;

recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to above;

monitor the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time;

prepare at ransparent monitoring mechanism for ensuring implementation of the projects/ programmes / activities
proposed to be undertaken by the Company; and

such other activities as the Board of Directors may determine from time to time.

During the year ended 31st March, 2020, the CSR Committee met two times on 27.08.2019 and 15.02.2020. Details of attendance are given below;

5L : Mo, of meetings held during the
s Mame of Director Gl and after sppcimnint Mo. of meetings attended
1ladv. Peedipose Thomas 1 1
21MAr. & Purushothaman 2 2
3|Adv. VE Prasad 2 1
AAdw. Ref Zacharah . x
5iMr. Wijayan Cherukass 2 2
B{Mr. & Mohammmed Sha 2 2
7|Mr. P Anandakittan 2 1

Disclosures

During the year, the Company did not enter into any material related patryt ransactions with its directors or senior management or their
relatives that would potentially conflict with and or adversely affect the interests of the Company and against the provisions of The
Companies Act. The Company has complied with all the directives issued by all statutory authorities. No penalties and strictures were
imposed on the Company by any of the regulatory authorities viz; Reserve Bank of India, Registrar of Companies etc. for
non-compliance with any laws, guidelines and directives during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

(Sd/-)

K. Varadarajan
Chairman

DIN: 08157496
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of The Kerala State Financial Enterprises Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of The Kerala State Financial Enterprises LIMITED, ("the Company"), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the statement of
Changes in Equtiy and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. Incorporated in these financial statements are the accounts of the Head Office
at Thrissur, Regional Offices at Thrissur and 46 Branches coming under the Thrissur region audited by us and the other 12 Regional Offices namely
Kannur, Kozhikode, Ernakulam, Kottayam, Kollam, Thiruvananthapuram, Attingal, Alappuzha, Kattappana, Palakkad, Pathanamthitta and
Malappuram and 528 branches and 1 NRI Chitty Cetnre under these regional offices audited by Regional/Branch Auditors.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects of the matter described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give at rue and fair view in conformtiy with the accounting principles generally accepted in India
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020 and its profits, total comprehensive
income, changes in equtiy and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The basis of Qualified Opinion is detailed in Annexure-A to this report regarding the following qualifications:

1. Non reconciliation of Inter Branch accounts, Suspense accounts and other accounts.

2. Excess provision for impairment of financial assets and non-recognition of interest income on Non-Performing Assets as required
by Ind AS-109.

3. Provision for financial impact of fraud identified during the year.

4. Amount payable to removed subscribers not deposited in separate bank account.

5. Excess recognition of Deferred tax asset as per Ind AS-12 - Income Taxes.

6. Effect of pay revision on gratutiy and earned leave salary not provided as per Ind AS-19 - Employee benefits.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following matters:

1. We draw reference to note no. 29.28, the Company follows the practice of registering Chitty after realization of the first
instalment. However, as per the Auditor's Report issued by some of the Regional Auditor's (including Thrissur region), few chits
are registered without realization of first instalment.
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2. We draw reference to note no. 29.25, some of the branches of the Company have not complied with the Prevention of Money
Laundering Act, 2002 and 'Know Your Customer' (KYC) Guidelines formulated by Reserve Bank of India. Further, documents of
loans granted are incomplete in some cases.

3. We draw reference to note no. 29.22, account balances with customers are not confirmed in most of the cases.

4. We draw reference to note no. 29.18, the company does nott ransfer unclaimed matured deposits to Investor Education and
Protection Fund as stipulated by section 125 of the Companies Act. As stated therein, based on the expert opinion obtained from
an independent practicing Company Secretary, the management is of the view that deposits accepted by the Company are
outside the purview of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India as the repayments of the same is guaranteed by the
Government of Kerala. Consequently, the company does not consider unclaimed matured deposits as deposits under rule
2(1)(c)(i) of the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014. The total amount of unclaimed matured deposits outstanding
for more than 7 years as on 31 March 2020 was Rs 20.03 Lakh.

5. Deposits with Treasury and deposits held by the branches in the name of Assistant Registrars and interest accrued thereon are
subject to confirmation; the impacts thereof on the financial statements are not ascertainable.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the above stated matters.
Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors' Report thereon

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company's Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibiltiy is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation
of these standalone financial statements that give at rue and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, changes in equtiy, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. This responsibiltiy also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial cotnrols, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give at rue and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's abiltiy to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operation, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
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assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, msirepresentations, or the override of internal
cotnrol.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal financial cotnrols relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial cotnrolss ystem in place and the operating effectiveness of such cotnrols.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by Management.

e  (Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertaitny exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's abiltiy to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertaitny exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

®  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlyingt ransactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal cotnrol that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of 12 Regional Offices and 528 branches and 1 NRI Chitty Cetnre of the Company,
whose financial statements / financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 31,13,652.98 Lakh as at 31st March, 2020 and total revenues of Rs.
2,18,292.65 Lakh for the year ended on that date, as considered in the standalone financial statements. These financial statements / financial
information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the standalone
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these Regional offices and Branches, and our report
in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the Cetnral Government of India in terms of
sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and

4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
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2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit except for the matters described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion section of our
report.

Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, proper
books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and reports of the other auditors.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in
Equtiy and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account and with the
returns received from the Regional Offices/Branches which have been audited by other regional auditors.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued there under, except for those items given in "Annexure-A" to this report.

Being a Government Company, the provisions of sec 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as per Notification
No. G.S.R.463 (E) dated 05thJune, 2015 issued by the Department of Company Affairs.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial cotnrols over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such cotnrols, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure C".

Being a Government Company, the provisions of section 197 of the Act with respect to the matters to be included in the
Auditors' Report is not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position and disclosed in its
standalone financial statements - Refer Note No. 29.5 on Contingent Liabilities.

ii) The Company did not have any long-term cotnracts including derivative cotnracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iii) We draw reference to point no. 4 of Emphasis of Mater section of this report. As stated therein the management is
of the view that deposits accepted by the Company are outside the purview of the directives issued by the Reserve
Bank of India and the provisions of section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act,2013 as these are guaranteed by the
Government of Kerala till the time they are matured. The Company has nott ransferred the unclaimed matured
public deposits to Investor Education and Protection Fund.

3. As required by Section 143 (5) of the Act, we have considered the directions issued by the Comtproller and Audit General of India,
the action taken thereon and its impact on the accounts and financial statements of the Company in "Annexure - D".

For PAULSON AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

(Sd/-)
' CAPAULSONK. P.
Kochi-17 LL.B, FCA, DISA (ICAI)
23-03-2021 Membership No. 021855: FR N0.002620S
UDIN: 21021855AAAAHA9427 Partner
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ANNEXURE 'A' REFERRED TO IN BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION PARAGRAPH OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF
THE KERALA STATE FINANCIAL ENTERPRISES LIMITED ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE
PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

1. Non reconciliation of Inter Branch Accounts, Suspense Accounts and Other Accounts

a)

Reference is drawn to Note No.12 'Other Non-Financial Assets, a sum of Rs. 11,277.14 Lakh have been disclosed under
Inter-branch current account. This includes both reconciled and un-reconciled balances between books of the various
branches, Regional offices and the Head Office. Out of the above the company is unable to furnish the particulars of the
un-reconciled amount of Rs. 4,069.13 Lakh (net debit balance). The impact/effect thereof, if any, arising out of
reconciliation on the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020 is not ascertainable at this stage.

The net credit balance in various suspense accounts as on 31st March, 2020 is Rs. 24,627.87 Lakh. These suspense
accounts are un-reconciled for a long period. As the reconciliation is pending, we are unable to comment on the impact
of the same in the financial statements of the company.

Reference is drawn to Note No. 29.17 and 29.27, The Company had been acting as an agent of Government of Kerala in
respect of Revised Bhadratha Social Securtiy Scheme (RBD) on commission basis. The scheme has been since
discontinued; the account shows a net balance of Rs.142.02 Lakh (PY: Rs.192.92 Lakh) due to pending reconciliation. In
the absence of confirmation and reconciliation, the impact/effect thereof, if any, on the financial statements for the
year ended 31st March, 2020 is not ascertainable at this stage. Further government has resumed amount from RBD
accounts maintained int reasury at various points of time, however due to insufficient information on the same at
branch and RO level, etnries have not been passed and have not been disclosed adequately in the notes. In the absence
of information, we are unable to quantify the impact of the same on the financials.

There are cases of unadjusted debits and credits appearing in the bank reconciliation statements, further there were
many instances of time-barred/ dishonored cheques appearing in bank reconciliation. In the absence of adequate
information, we are unable to ascertain the impact on Assets/Liabilities/Income/Expenditure.

2. Excess provision for impairment of financial assets and non - recognition of Interest income on Non-performing assets as
required by Ind AS - 109

i)

The company has not provided impairment loss based on Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Method in accordance with Ind
AS-109. Instead, the Company has made provision for non-performing loans as per RBI norms prescribed for the period
beginning from 1.4.2019 as referred to Note No. 3.5, which constitutes a departure from the Ind AS. Had the
management provided impairment loss based on ECL Method, the following items would have been changed by:

Decrease in impairment loss by Rs.5,961.63 Lakh during the year 2019-20 and consequent increases in the profit for the
year by Rs.5,961.63 Lakh. The cumulative impact of excess provision for impairment loss till 31 March 2019 and 31
March 2020 was Rs.44,736.21 Lakh and Rs. 50697.86 Lakh respectively and the loan amount net of impairment loss and
general reserves as those dates would have been higher by the respective amounts.

Interest is not recognized on net carrying value i.e., gross minus impairment provision of non-performing financial
assets. In the absence of details, we are not in a position to quantify the impact thereof on the financial statements.

3. Provision for financial impact of fraud identified during the year.

The Company has made a provision of Rs. 879.98 Lakh (Cumulative provision of Rs.1848.25 Lakh as on 31.03.2020) for
frauds/ misappropriation reported during the year. In the absence of adequate information regarding the securtiy available
and recovery made with the company, we are unable to comment on the adequacy of these provisions and consequent
adjustments if any required on the financial statements for the year.
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4. Amount payable to removed subscribers not deposited in separate bank account.

Reference is drawn to note no. 29.29, as on 31 March 2020 there was an outstanding due of Rs. 13,898.45 Lakh payable to
defaulted & removed subscribers, the deposit of the said amount into approved banks and intimation to defaulting
subscribers and registrar is being done at the branch level, on our verification and as reported by various RO auditors, the
same has not been done for all cases and records of deposits into approved banks have not been maintained properly. In
the absence of adequate records and information, we are unable to ascertain the quantum of deposits for which there is a
violation with respect to section 30 of The Chit Funds Act 1982.

5. Excess recognition of Deferred tax Asset as per 'Ind AS12 - Income Taxes.

Reference is drawn to note no.10B, the company during the current year has recognized deferred tax asset due timing
difference, mainly on Propetry, Plant and Equipment's, employee benefits, provision for bad and doubtful debts and others.
On our evaluation we are of the opinion that deferred tax asset on Propetry, Plant and equipment's is overstated by Rs.
202.70 Lakh. Further the Company has not accurately recognized deferred tax asset on temporary differences i.e.,
differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liabiltiy in the balance sheet and its tax base in the case of deferred
tax asset on employee benefits, provision for bad and doubtful debts and others. Since the Company has not maintained
proper record of historical details required to determine the tax base of these items, we are unable to quantify the impact
of these misstatements on the financial statements for the year.

6. Effect of pay revision on gratutiy and earned leave salary not provided as per 'IND AS 19 - Employee Benefits'

The Company, in compliance with Government Order No. GO(MS)No. 20/2021/Taxes, dated 19 February 2021, has provided
for pay revision with rterospective effect from 2017, amounting to Rs 17,243 Lakh which includes Rs. 6,520 Lakh to
employee benefit expenses for the current year to accommodate the effect of the pay revision. However, it is noted that the
Company has considered the payroll data based on salary information prior to pay revision for actuarial valuation of
defined benefit obligations namely gratutiy and earned leave salary as per 'IND AS 19 - Employee Benefits. Considering the
materialtiy of pay revision, we are of the opinion that effects of pay revision needs to be considered for actuarial valuation
of gratutiy and earned leave salary. In the absence of revised actuarial valuation based on salary details post pay revision
we are unable to quantify the impact of the same on the financial statements.

The net profit for the year ended 31 March 2020 is understated due to the reasons reported in Clause 2 above amounting
to Rs 5,961.63 Lakh. As discussed above, we are unable to quantify the financial impacts of the qualifications reported in
clauses 1,3,4,5 and 6 due to the reasons mentioned in the respective clauses.

For PAULSON AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

(Sd/-)
. CAPAULSONK. P.
Kochi-17 LL.B, FCA, DISA (ICAI)
23-03-2021 Membership No. 021855: FR N0.002620S
UDIN: 21021855AAAAHA9427 Partner
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ANNEXURE 'B' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KERALA STATE
FINANCIAL ENTERPRISES LIMITED

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31st
March 2020, we report that:

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Propetry, Plant & Equipment (PPE), including
quantitative details and the situation of PPE. However, recording of identification number on PPE and proper accounting
of inter-branch or inter-regionalt ransfers and their reconciliations has not been done properly.

b) Based on the information and explanations given to us, PPE are physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals. However, in the absence of unique identification number on PPE register, we are not in a position to comment
on the accuracy of such physical verification system. Transfers of PPE between Branches, Branches to/from Head Office or
Regional Office have not been reconciled. In the absence of full details, the consequent impact on the value of assets and
depreciation thereon is unascertainable.

<) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of immovable properties
are held in the name of the company, except in the following cases, where title deeds were not available for verification.

Dascription of Property Location Area of Land Aemarks

Land In Sy, Mocdehd Thrisswr 75 cents Wadue Rs.1.73 Lakh

Land walies iz nol ﬂ&i'ﬂ.l'-ﬂl'.“l'.‘-ﬂtll‘lléd i
Land Kilzm 15 cents books, as the value is not yet decided by
the Govt. of Kerala.

Vi.

The company did not hold any inventory other than stock of stationary which is not used fort rading and hence provision of
clause 3(ii) are not applicable.

In our opinion and based on Regional Auditors Report and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, limited liabiltiy partnerships, firms or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on Regional Auditors Report, the
Company has not given any loans, made any investments, provided any guarantees and given any securtiy to which the
provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable.

The Company has granted loan to Kerala State Social Securtiy Pension Limited amounting to Rs. 3,00,000 Lakh during the year
ended 31.03.2020 based on the orders/ letters from Government of Kerala. The Company granted loans to Kerala Financial
Corporation amounting to Rs. 15000 Lakh, the approval for the same was received through ratified government orders dated
17/02/2021.

According to the information and explanation given to us and according to the examination of the records, the Company has
accepted deposits from the public. The deposits are guaranteed by the Government of Kerala to the tune of Rs. 12,000 crore with
effect from 19.03.2019 and further increased to 15,000 crore with effect from 18.01.2021. Based on the legal opinion obtained
from an independent practicing Company Secretary, the management is of the view that that deposits accepted by the
Company are outside the purview of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India as these are guaranteed by the
Government of Kerala. Consequently, the provisions of section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act,2013 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Reference is drawn to point number 4 of Emphasis of Matter paragraph
of main audit report with reference to unclaimed matured deposits..

According to the explanations and information given by the management, maintenance of cost records has not been specified
by the Cetnral Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for any of the activities of the

)

company.
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Vii.
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a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of books and records, in our
opinion, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Income Tax, Goods and service Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax, Customs dtuy, Cess and other material statutory
dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities during the year and there were no outstanding as at March 31,2020
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable except the following statutory dues (excluding

interest):
1. Provident fund of newly appointed staffs for Rs. 51.32 Lakh which fell due from April 2018 onwards.
2. Provident fund portion of Pay Revision amounting to Rs.1,600.09 Lakh is outstanding as on 31st March 2020.

b) According to the records made available to us and the information and explanations given by the management, the
particulars of dues of Income tax, Goods and Service Tax, Sales tax and Wealth tax. Service tax, Customs dtuy, EPF, ESI, and
Cess as at 31st March, 2020 which have not been deposited on account of dispute, are as follows:

Mama of the Saatuts Natsre of tha Dues | Amoasrt (RS, Lakhs)

Pariod ta which the

iy Forum where disgute is pending

S

Interest Tak &ct, 1974 finterest T 1043 48 AY 2000-00 Horn'ble Supreme Court of India.

Finanos &ct, 1994 Service Tae [al S

Iuly 204 2 to October | Commissioner of Central Exose &
i) Customred dppeals|, Kochi.

Finanos &ct, 1999 farvice T 435 1012-13 o J14-1%

Commissioner of Central Eacise &

Customel Appeals|, Kochi.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the company produced to us and
examined by us, in our opinion, we are of the opinion that the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial
institutions, banks, Government or debenture holders during the year.

The company has not obtained any term loans or raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting thet rue and fair view of the financial statements and
according to the information and explanations given by the management, no fraud by the Company has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit. However, as informed by the management, there have been certain instances of fraud
on the company by employees where chitty related misappropriations/improper acceptance of securtiy/document fabrication
etc. (excluding chitty inflation) have occurred for an estimated amount of Rs. 1759.97 Lakh. The financial impact of frauds in
respect of chitty inflation has not been ascertained. The Company has created a provision for Rs. 879.98 Lakh during the year in
respect of frauds identified during the year. Reference is drawn to point number 3 of Annexure 'A' to the main audit report, basis
for qualified opinion.

As per notification number G.S.R 463 (E) dated June 5, 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, section 197 as regards the
managerial remuneration is not applicable to the Company, since it is a Government Company.

The company is not a Nidhi Company, therefore the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016, is not
applicable to the company.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given to us, the related patryt
ransactions are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and have been disclosed in the Financial
Statements as required by applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, the
company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares, or any issue of fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, the requirement of Section 42 of the Companies Act,2013 is not applicable to the

company.
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XV. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not entered in to any non-casht ransactions, as
referred to in section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013, with the directors or persons connected with them.

xvi.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For PAULSON AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

(Sd/-)

CAPAULSONK.P.

LL.B, FCA, DISA (ICAI)
Kochi-17 Membership No. 021855: FR N0.002620S
23-03-2021 Partner
UDIN: 21021855AAAAHA9427




ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 =

OI(SFE

ANNEXURE 'C' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KERALA STATE
FINANCIAL ENTERPRISES LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Cotnrols under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")
We have audited the internal financial cotnrols over financial reporting of KERALA STATE FINANCIAL ENTERPRISES LIMITED ("the
Company") as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibiltiy for Internal Financial Cotnrols

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial cotnrols based on the internal cotnrol over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal cotnrol stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Cotnrols over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial cotnrols that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibiltiy

Our responsibiltiy is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial cotnrols over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Cotnrols Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance
Note") and the Standards on Auditing (the 'standards') issued by ICAI specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial cotnrols. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial cotnrols over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such cotnrols operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial cotnrolss ystem over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial cotnrols over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial cotnrols over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal cotnrol based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company's internal financial cotnrolss ystem over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Cotnrols Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial cotnrol over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliabiltiy of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles. A company's internal financial cotnrol over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect thet ransactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance thatt ransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Cotnrols over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial cotnrols over financial reporting, including the possibiltiy of collusion or improper
management override of cotnrols, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
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of any evaluation of the internal financial cotnrols over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
cotnrol over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit and on the basis of reports of other Regional/Branch
auditors, the following material weaknesses have been identified as on 31st March, 2020;

a)

Recording of identification number on PPE and accounting for inter-branch or inter-regionalt ransfers is not adequate. Reference
is drawn to point (i) (a) in '"Annexure-B' to main audit report.

Non reconciliation of inter branch accounts referred to in Note No. 29.15 of the financial statements. Reference is drawn to point
1 (a) in 'Annexure-A' to main audit report.

Non-reconciliation of various suspense accounts. Reference is drawn to point 1 (b) in 'Annexure-A' to main audit report.

Non reconciliation of Revised Bhadratha Social Securtiy Scheme (RBD) account balance of Government of Kerala. Reference is
drawn to point 1 (c) in 'Annexure-A' to main audit report.

Lack of effective review of bank reconciliation statements thereof leading to cases of unadjusted debits and credits appearing in
the bank reconciliation statements, and many instances of time-barred/ dishonoured cheques appearing in bank reconciliation.
Reference is drawn to point 1 (d) in 'Annexure-A' to main audit report.

Provisioning for impairment loss not as per Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Method in accordance with IndAS-109 where the
Company has made provision for non-performing loans as per RBI norms prescribed for the period beginning from 1.4.2019 as
referred to Note No.3.5 of the financial statements. This has led to excess provisioning for credit losses and is a departure from the
principles of IND AS 109. Reference is drawn to point 2 (i) in 'Annexure-A' to main audit report.

Company recognises Interest income on gross carrying value instead of net carrying value i.e., gross minus impairment provision
of non-performing financial assets. Reference is drawn to 2 (ii) in '"Annexure-A' to main audit report.

The Company has made a provision of Rs. 879.98 Lakh (Cumulative provision of Rs.1848.25 Lakh as on 31.03.2020) for
frauds/misappropriation reported during the year without proper compilation and evaluation of securtiy available and recovery
made by the company. Reference is drawn to point 3 in 'Annexure-A' to main audit report.

The Company has not accurately recognized deferred tax asset on temporary differences i.e differences between the carrying
amount of an asset or liabiltiy in the balance sheet and its tax base and the Company has not maintained proper record of
historical details required to determine the tax base of these items. Reference is drawn to point 5 in 'Annexure-A' to main audit
report.

Company has not factored in the impact of pay revision while carrying out the actuarial valuation for gratutiy and earned leave
salary leading to misstatements in the financial statements. Reference is drawn to point 6 in 'Annexure-A' to main audit report.

Instances of registration of chitties without realising first Instalment. Reference is drawn to point number one of 'Emphasis of
Matter' paragraph in the main audit report.

A 'Material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial cotnrol over financial reporting, such that there
is a reasonable possibiltiy that a material misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or
detected on timely basis.
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Qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the effects of material weaknesses described above on the achievement of the objectives of the cotnrol criteria,
the Company has maintained, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial cotnrolss ystem over financial reporting and such
internal financial cotnrols over financial reporting were operating effectively as of 31stMarch 2020, based on the internal cotnrol over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal cotnrol stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Cotnrols Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

For PAULSON AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

CA PAULSONK.P.
LL.B, FCA, DISA (ICAI)
Membership No. 021855: FR N0.002620S
Kochi-17 Partner
23-03-2021
UDIN: 21021855AAAAHA9427




== ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

OI(SFE

ANNEXURE 'D' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KERALA STATE
FINANCIAL ENTERPRISES LIMITED, ERNAKULAM

Replies to directions from comtproller & auditor general of India under section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013

1)

1))

1)

Whether the Company hass ystem in place to process all the accountingt ransactions through ITs ystem? If yes, the
implications of processing of accountingt ransactions outside ITs ystem on the integrtiy of the accounts along with the
financial implications, if any, may be stated.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company hass ystem in place to process all the accountingt
ransactions through IT System. According to the explanations and information given to us all the accountingt ransactions of the
Company is processed through the ITs ystems. However, the ITs ystem of Revenue Recovery Department and NRI Branch is not
integrated with the company's mains ystem and software.

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc. made by a
lender to the Company due to the Company's inabiltiy to repay the loan? If yes, the financial implications may be stated.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no instances of restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write
off of debts/loans/interest etc. due to the Company's inabiltiy to repay the loan.

Whether funds received/receivable for specific schemes from cetnral or state agencies were properly accounted
for/utilized as per its terms and conditions? List the cases of deviations.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no such funds were received by the company during the period.

Reply to Sector Specific Sub- Directions

Finance Sector

1.

Whether the company has complied with the directions issued by Reserve Bank of India for:

i) Non-Banking Finance companies (NBFCs);

Reply: According to the information and explanation given to us, KSFE is categorized as Miscellaneous Non-Banking
Company and it has complied with the directions of Reserve Bank of India for Miscellaneous Non-Banking Companies.

i) Classification of Non-performing assets;

Reply: According to the information and explanation given to us, NPA (Other than chitty) is classified on the basis of
prudential norms of RBI in this regard.

iii)  Capital adequacy norms for NBFCs;

Reply: According to the information and explanation given to us, Capital adequacy norms is not applicable to KSFE as the
company is a Miscellaneous Non-Banking Company, and it has complied with the directions of Reserve Bank of India.

Whether the company has as ystem to ensure that loans were secured by adequate securtiy free from encumbrances and
have first charge on mortgaged assets. Further, instances of undue delay in disposal of seized units may be reported:

In case of loans sanctioned against securtiy of land and building, non-encumbrance certificate has been collected by the
branches. Instances of undue delay in disposal of seized units are not available from the accountings ystem. Reference is drawn
to point number 2 of Emphasis of Matter paragraph of main audit report with reference to inadequate loan documentation.

Whether itnroduction of any scheme for settlement of dues and extensions thereto are in compliance with the policy
guidelines of the Company/Government:

According to the information and explanations given to us, One Time Settlement schemes are operated as per policy guidelines
of the company.

©)
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4, Comment on the confirmation of balances oft rade receivables,t rade payables, term deposits, bank account and cash:

Confirmation have been received on a random basis at Head Office, Regional Office and branch level. Reference is drawn to point
number 3 and 5 of Emphasis of Matter paragraph of main audit report with reference to customer confirmation and confirmation
Treasury and deposits in the name of Assistant Registrars of Chitties.

5. Whether the bank guarantees are revalidated in time?

According to the information and explanations given to us, no lapses were noticed by us

For PAULSON AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

(Sd/-)

CAPAULSONK.P.

LL.B, FCA, DISA (ICAI)
Kochi-17 Membership No. 021855: FR N0.002620S
23-03-2021 Partner
UDIN: 21021855AAAAHA9427
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THE KERALA STATE FINANCIAL ENTERPRISES LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2020

( Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars ]“Jﬂ. A ot 31.03.1000 As 3310320
I | ASSETS
L Firaneial Assits
a Cash and cash agumalonts 5 11, 73033 LBl 53073
b, Bank Balarces ctier than [g) aboer & .94, 77007 6,08 481, 06
L. Lioare T %74,119.43 23,20,80517
o, Ineessrmants ] 13,503 B0 7630
B [Bher fnarcisl payety 9 ALASS 25 98 ETL.59
Total Financi Asets 35 901,980.95 31,580,331.34
3, HoevTinancial Assets
o Cerrent 12 asets (Kt 104 L8 587 28 13 TR1.73
by, Dl e T st | Khat) 108 1551806 2045034
c. Property, Plant and Equipment 1 22108 LESE TG
o, Cii trl wria - e i r i 118 " v
e inienphle prsets 1ic 11817 105,77
I, Cither non-finend s assets 12 r54% 10 TEEAT
Tortad Kon-Finsecal Aot 5753143 ay sl
Tetal Azzets 3740513 87 v Wi LAY
Il | RARRILITIES AND QLT
1, Finarcial Lkl i
a. Bonrming s (odwar thas debi secerivias) 13 146,343,509 24755800
& el i 14,33, 300.4% 12,54, 6550
« {ther Enanciat Liabiities 15 15,63,516.01 16, 26,504 44
Tokal Financial §asibtaes 3%.35,259,0% 31,24 52,35
3, Mo Financial iasifciss
. Prosssioms 15 15, 7212/08 1351664
& {mher non-Tinancial liahditie: i? 4,898,330 50T
Tatal Mo Anancial Rakid bizes ﬂ,m.! ig,ﬁ?.ﬁ:l.
Ry T
Fial bl inies | s;olarad) | J1A30080%e
3 ECLETY
1. Equity thare cagital 18 F{ERE TR ] 1,000
b Daher equity 13 47633146 H5,035.29
Tatat Fquity 87,633,165 95015359
Total Liabiliies and Equity 37,49, 51257 I W 5.5

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report with UDIN 21021855AAAAHA9427 of even date attached.

For PAULSON AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

CA PAULSONK.P.
LL.B, FCA, DISA (ICAI)
Membership No. 021855: FR N0.002620S

Partner

Place : Thrissur
Date : 23/03/2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Sd/-
Adv. Peelipose Thomas
Chairman

Sd/-
V.P.Subramanian
Managing Director (Incharge)

Sd/-
Mini.V.R
Director
Sd/-

S.Sarath Chandran
General Manager (Finance)

Sd/-

Emil Alex
Company Secretary
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THE KERALA STATE FINANCIAL ENTERPRISES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

( Rs in Lakhs)
e DN [ e
o |Reweru e Inom opir 3o rg
Il intporsk Ingome o 153,53 80 145 29737
|11 Foreman Comemision 1,06, 761 86 ,042.82
(i} Serabe Charges 21ial 1.15785 11337
|ra] Fther Bavesae Irom Chit Fund Qperatons T ki 1744 2185532
Total Bewiue Irom Operations A GET 36 2EI AT
4 |thes nrnmme s [Pk [kt
[ Tednl Irscairia |148] 2,879 2,63.493.97
% |ESFEMEES
Firance Coefy S Lﬁ.m L‘-II.M
Irpa rmess gt tmeecigl inysmants 74 2351835 a31321
Empioyes banefit aspenses b 500 TELEL0Y
Lmprenipion, smothapkon and imparmeni i) I.M -E“d-?
Crhed i g Tl ar 217 58173 h.ﬁlﬂ
Total Eaponse 2,7L.r14.563 2,51 1459.84
% |Frodit beslore aa et anal Ems and G [11-00 Em_l ﬂlﬁ
(V) [Escepbioral hems
Wi [Frafit beatane mam -1 Ins1s3e T 1
HUTHELFER= ST
B Turretk baw 407131 54379
b. Dederned tas 108 [ (LD AT)
. Aedading b earbor years (rat] a4 mal
3,23 A0 o &l 24
8] |Frokt for the gear iram cantisging operabiong V-4l ,Jm ?.TM
L H] Prafit for tha year TIM06 7,798.24
] [ s Connadihirghae oo e
|1} e thet wil not be cec s ed bo ol @ or koas (Be-mepaurements ol 15‘”3‘“ ﬂ‘l]ﬁ-ll
i) Ircamie taos relating to fems that will not be reclassfied fo profit o loss 148,53 BA43
Gther compreherahee Inoomes {ret ol tas) RS TR) {1593}
(L] Tofal Comprehenshee Incame Sor the year (KX AT A0 7. Te2. 04
|51 |Egrmings per aguity share 0
Bask and diluped carcings por cgeily bhan (A5 BE3T TG
Recimin e wahisl fer Edjuiny share [Ra ) 10000 100.00

Additicnal Infanmatan

=

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report with UDIN 21021855AAAAHA9427 of even date attached.

For PAULSON AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

CAPAULSONK.P.

LL.B, FCA, DISA (ICAI)

Membership No. 021855: FR N0.002620S
Partner

Place : Thrissur
Date : 23/03/2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Sd/-
Adv. Peelipose Thomas
Chairman

Sd/-
V.P.Subramanian
Managing Director (Incharge)

Sd/-
Mini.V.R
Director
Sd/-

S.Sarath Chandran
General Manager (Finance)

Sd/-

Emil Alex
Company Secretary
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THE KERALA STATE FINANCIAL ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

( Rs in Lakhs)
Fowrihen puar sadesd Fer tha puar asded
[P JELOE I 11A3em
B Caih Pl fross Cpesalisg Acikalks
Zrof: § (Lol Ao Toa TR 1311377
CE R e
D pres Wz amd @rrors ) o g e 11E0 Bl AT
Imga e on drancial Eminoms PA151.75 aaai
IFrore L Lo et e ! i Poand & Do prrens LN LY [ B 4
(LT PO B AR e T Lo B e
] O L e O g e Ty B
pseratrg ol ke beefors Warkog Cackal Casge g LLNL] 5315882
Sdlartreerey fon:
Merreai fiarapie 10 omen noe- T il adiets WETIAL BAGH
mmieRd e S e caatel 14 isarg PR PEARROT] 4305473 375
Derrpawe f linraain i= o finarcul osen 1335 B [5 470 735
roramie f idecraune| N pitee finsncs labise m.b 1HOES T30
FRRNSE TR | W e FENAR b
8 et § ke vt | e pd e e LAl B 1 {1248.27] | 7.503 By
L ¥ e a et Poin vy i an b iy (236483 Dd] 7518500}

Dt Tamws Pad L EFR ] 1%, Be 33y
HE CaEn AR D aning At |25 410 15} 0, T3

[ Cvh lNizwa from lsserting fetisfio

Fuirehuchs o oty pied sl it 13E17 B5) 11,3029
Purchare o TR bie sual |alaa} [HEE
izgrnirrere nlapia Yootk nGreprem -
IRrEreTT Recerasd

C ke pron el oF S B asBts 10.9% 5.07
[P A S — 14505 385

P Balarsces e poniicnred gy Cath ard Cath pouese ris

|::I-ia.'i-ﬁﬂl-'l'l- FELEEE
IrEALE N irErTTET leﬂ Ly
Pt sk b e | e Vs g G im Hk_:ﬁ:

[ Cath Flzaa fram Finaeeng A=skaa

Procerdy [Tepeyreeni; rom Loare repayabie on demand Tram eva JE224.ak] 175
Frocesad s fram Shoar Temm Loan om D 10000 0o N7 HI000
Brauiwa . fraw M Eoe 1L bom itk pLrs o B 133 o8
ke nd & Dk Crilidig i Tia Poad et CREH | 18219 43
Wict Caah uied i Fiasrcing Aotk 1ETIES 91 RSB

farsimany .
et Saah s ke Opesorting ArTviis ARATS| a0, a3
el sy bge N gl e Ieugiling daglieus {18EE | HLEea.31
Bl Taph s i D mgmere g Sk LAY IES ) L0 EEE 58

e InCush e E ﬂt IEH.-IJ.I-

Carh gred Canbs Bgutaaienls i the bep rmng of $ae yoas LG EMLTY Sl LEAS
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As-per our report with UDIN 21021855AAAAHA9427 of even date attached.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Sd/-
For PAULSON AND COMPANY Adv. Peelipose Thomas
Chartered Accountants Chairman
Sd/-
V.P.Subramanian
Sd/- Managing Director (Incharge)
CA PAULSON K. P.
LL.B, FCA, DISA (ICAI) Sd/-
Membership No. 021855 FR N0.002620S Mini.V.R
Partner Director
Sd/-
S.Sarath Chandran
General Manager (Finance)
Place : Thrissur Sd/-
Date : 23/03/2021 Emil Alex

Company Secretary
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THE KERALA STATE FINANCIAL ENTERPRISES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2020

A. Equity Share Capital (Rs in Lakhs)
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report with UDIN 21021855AAAAHA9427 of even date attached.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Sd/-
For PAULSON AND COMPANY Adv. Peelipose Thomas
Chairman
Chartered Accountants
Sd/-
V.P.Subramanian
Sd/- Managing Director (Incharge)
CA PAULSON K. P.
LL.B, FCA, DISA (ICAI) Sd/-
Membership No. 021855: FR No.0026205 Mini.V.R
Partner Director
Sd/-
S.Sarath Chandran
General Manager (Finance)
Place : Thrissur Sd/-
Date : 23/03/2021 Emil Alex
Company Secretary
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The Kerala State Financial Enterprises Limited

1. Corporate Information

The Kerala State Financial Enterprises Limited ("the Company") was incorporated as a Private Limited Company fully owned by
Government of Kerala on 6thNovember 1969. The Company was established with the objective of providing an alternative to the public from the
private chit promoters in order to bring in social cotnrol over chit fund business. The Company is primarily engaged in Chit fund operations and is
also into lending business and accepts deposits from public, the repayment of which is guaranteed by Government of Kerala. The Registered Office
of the Company is situated at Thrissur and as at 31.03.2020, the Company is having 13 regional offices and 574 branches, spread across the state of
Kerala.

2. Basis of preparation and presentation
2.1. Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time).

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosed amount of contingent liabilities. Areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complextiy, or areas where assumptions are significant to the Company are discussed in Note 4 -
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions.

2.2. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for following assets and liabilities which have been
measured at fair value:

i) Other financial assets held fort rading,
ii)  Financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),
iii)  Financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI).
2.3. Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these standalone financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial
statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

2.3.1 Judgements:

There are no significant judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most material effects on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

2.3.2 Assumptions and estimation uncertainties:

a. Useful lives of propetry, plant and equipment
Propetry, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in
respect of periodic depreciation and amortisation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's
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expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful life and residual values of
Company's assets are determined by Management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically,
including each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as
anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology.

b. Others:
Further information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment for the year ended 31 March 2020 is included in the following notes:

- Note 4 - Determining the fair value of investment propetry.
- Note 9 & 24 - Recognition of impairment loss of financial assets;
- Note 10 B - Deferred tax asset; and

- Note 29.3 - Determining whether an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS
116

- Notes 29.5 — Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources;

- Note 29.6 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

2.4. Presentation

The financial statements of the Company are presented as per Schedule Il (Division Ill) of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to
Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFC), as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also its functional currency and all values are rounded to the
nearest lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

3. Significant accounting policies

3.1. Revenue from Operations

Recognition of interest income

The Company recognises interest income by applying the effective interest rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset except for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets and other credit-impaired financial
assets.

Interest income on allt rading assets and financial assets required to be measured at FVTPL is recognised using the
cotnractual interest rate as net gain on fair value changes.

Accrual method of accounting for interest income on advances is followed for all loans except for default on prized
chitties. However, Interest income on advances where instalment is overdue for more than 90 days falling under NPA
category and chitty loan of amount advanced to KSFE Staff Co-op. Socitey Ltd. 777 is recognized as and when the same is
received.

The Company has taken the rate of interest charged to the customers as the effective rate of interest (EIR) since, the rate
of interest charged is par with the market rate of interest. Transaction costs viz; processing fee, administrative charges
recovered are not adjusted for calculation of EIR and not amortised as the amount involved is not material.

Recognition of revenue from sale of goods or services

Revenue (other than for Financial Instruments within the scope of Ind AS 109) is measured at an amount that reflects the
considerations, to which an enttiy expects to be entitled in exchange fort ransferring goods or services to customer,
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
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The Company recognises revenue from cotnracts with customers based on a five-step model as set out in Ind AS 115:

Step 1:

Step 2:

Step 3:

Step 4:

Step 5:

Identify cotnract(s) with a customer: A cotnract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that
creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every cotnract that must be met.

Identify performance obligations in the cotnract: A performance obligation is a promise in a cotnract with a
customer tot ransfer a good or service to the customer.

Determine thet ransaction price: Thet ransaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange fort ransferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Allocate thet ransaction price to the performance obligations in the cotnract: For a cotnract that has more than
one performance obligation, the Company allocates thet ransaction price to each performance obligation in an
amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
satisfying each performance obligation.

Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

Foreman's commission on company substituted tickets and profit /loss on such tickets gets recognized under
the head "Profit on Chitty substituted tickets" only at the time of termination of the chitty.

3.2. Financial instruments

A. Financial Assets

3.2.1.1.

3.2.1.2.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value when the parties become patry to the cotnractual
provisions of the financial asset. In case of financial assets which are not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss,t ransaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial assets, are adjusted
to the fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement

The Company classifies its financial assets into various measurement categories. The classification depends on
the cotnractual terms of the financial assets' cash flows and the Company's business model for managing
financial assets.

a. Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at Amortised Cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold the asset in order to collect cotnractual cash flows and the cotnractual terms of the Financial Asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

b. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting cotnractual cash flows and selling financial assets and cotnractual terms of financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

C Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.
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B. Financial liabilities

3.2.2. Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributablet ransaction costs. The company's financial liabilities includet rade and other payables,
public deposits and borrowings including bank overdrafts.

3.2.3. Subsequent Measurement
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
3.3. Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
3.3.1.1. Financial Asset

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the cotnractual cash flows from the asset expire or itt ransfers
its rights to receive cotnractual cash flows from the financial asset in at ransaction in which substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership aret ransferred. Any interest int ransferred financial assets that is created or
retained by the Company is recognized as a separate asset or liabiltiy.

3.3.2. Financial Liabiltiy

A financial liabiltiy is derecognised when the obligation under the liabiltiy is discharged, cancelled or expired.
Where an existing financial liabiltiy is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liabiltiy are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification ist reated as
de-recognition of the original liabiltiy and the recognition of a new liabiltiy. The difference between the carrying
value of the original financial liabiltiy and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

3.4. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported at gross value in the Balance Sheet except financial assets and liabilities
are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends
to settle on a net basis or wherein the net value after provision is shown in the Balance Sheet to realise the asset and settle the liabiltiy
simultaneously in all the following circumstances:

a.  The normal course of business
b.  The event of default

¢.  Theevent of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties
3.5. Impairment of financial assets

Even though the prudential norms of RBI with regard to provisioning requirements are not applicable to the Company, as a matter of
prudence, from FY 2018-19, the Company has switched to 90 days NPA norms & creation of provision for doubtful debts & standard
assets as per age-wise analysis as stipulated by RBI in its master circular No.DBODNo.BP.BC.9/21.04.048/2014-15 dated 01.07.2014
(though 120 days norm is applicable for non-banking finance companies for FY 2018-19). The Company has also adopted classification
of debts on borrower wise categorization as against faciltiy wise categorization. Prudential norms of RBI with regard to provisioning
requirement is not being adopted for chitty & prized default in chitties arising to the peculiar nature of the scheme.

The impairment allowance calculated for expected credit loss on loan portfolio and the provisions calculated on non-performing
assets in line with the NPA guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India were compared. Since, amount of provision as per RBI norms
is more, the management is of the view that such provision is more conservative and as a measure of prudence, provision has been
made in the accounts accordingly.
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Expected Credit Loss, at each reporting date, is measured through a loss allowance for a financial asset:

3.5.1. Expected Credit Loss (ECL)model

*  Atan amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition.

*  Atanamount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, if the credit risk on a financial instrument has
not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Lifetime expected credit losses means expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial asset.

12-month expected credit losses means the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result from default events on financial
assets that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

The Company performs an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial assets credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life
of the financial instrument is used instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses.

Estimation of Expected Credit Loss
The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:
Probabiltiy of Default (PD) - The Probabiltiy of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon.

The Company uses historical information to determine PD. Considering the different products and schemes, the Company has bifurcated its loan
portfolio into various pools and the PD are calculated considering fresh slippage of past years.

Exposure at Default (EAD) - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, considering expected changes in the
exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by cotnract or otherwise, expected
drawdown on committed facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments.

Loss Given Default (LGD) - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on
the difference between the cotnractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any
collateral.

Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the economy and market it
operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company based on its internal data.

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The collateral comes in various forms, such as
movable and immovable assets, securities, letters of credit/guarantees etc. However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECL. The
collateral is majorly the propetry for which the loan is given. The fair value of the same is based on data provided by third patry or management
judgements.

Loans are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company
determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash ows to repay the amounts subjected to
write-offs. Any subsequent recoveries against such loans are credited to the Statement of Prot and Loss.

Since, amount of provision as per RBI norms is more than the ECL calculation, the management is of the view that such provision as per RBI norms
is more conservative and as a measure of prudence, provision has been made in the accounts accordingly.

3.6. Determination of fair value of Financial Instruments

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid tot ransfer a liabiltiy in an orderlyt ransaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that thet ransaction to sell the asset
ort ransfer the liabiltiy takes place either:

i) In the principal market for the asset or liabiltiy, or
ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabiltiy
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liabiltiy is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liabiltiy, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's abiltiy to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

The financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1. Financial instruments -Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company considers markets
as active only if there are sufficientt rading activities with regards to the volume and liquidtiy of the identical assets or
liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2. Financial instruments-Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or
indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument's life. Such inputs include quoted
prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and
observable inputs other than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads.
In addition, adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates to
items that are comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on unobservable inputs
which are significant to the entire measurement, the Company will classify the instruments as Level 3.

Level 3. Financial instruments -Those that include one or more unobservable input that is signicant to the measurement as whole.
3.7. Finance Costs

Finance cost represents interest expense recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount of
financial liabilities other than financial liabilities classified as FVTPL.

The EIR in case of a financial liability is computed

a.  Asthe rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payment through the expected life of the financial liabiltiy to the
gross carrying amount of the amortised cost of a liabiltiy,

b. By considering all the cotnractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows,

¢.  Including all fees paid between parties to the cotnract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,t ransaction
costs and all other premiums or discounts. Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is
recognised in interest income with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.

The Company has taken the rate of interest paid on borrowings as the effective rate of interest (EIR) since, the rate of interest paid is
par with the market rate of interest. Transaction costs viz; processing fee, administrative charges recovered are not adjusted for
calculation of EIR and not amortised as the amount involved is not material.
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As per Ind AS 8- Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, an enttiy shall correct material prior period errors
rterospectively in the first set of financial statements approved for issue after their discovery by:

3.8. Prior period Income/ expense

a.  Restating the comparative amounts for the prior period(s) presented in which the error occurred; or

b.  If the error occurred before the earliest prior period presented, restating the opening balances of assets, liabilities and
equtiy for the earliest prior period presented.
In line with the said provision, Prior period errors are corrected rterospectively by restating the comparative amounts for prior periods
presented in which the error occurred or if the error occurred before the earliest period presented, by restating the opening statement
of financial position.

3.9. Other Income and Expenses

All other income and expense are recognized in the period they occur.

3.10. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of balance at bankst/reasury cash/cheques on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturtiy of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short- term deposits, as defined above.

3.11. Propetry, plant and equipment

plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deductingt rade
discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated
costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, outstanding at each reporting date are shown under other non-financial assets.
The cost of propetry, plant and equipment not ready for its intended use at each reporting date are disclosed as capital
work-in-progress.

Subsequent expenditure related to the asset are added to its carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset only if it increases the
future benefits of the existing asset, beyond its previously assessed standards of performance and cost can be measured reliably.
Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

3.12. Depreciation

Depreciation on Propetry, Plant and Equipment is calculated using written down value method (WDV) to write down the cost of
propetry and equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives which is in line with the estimated useful life as
specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of propetry, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period
or methodology, as appropriate, andt reated as changes in accounting estimates.

Propetry plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain
or loss arising on de recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is recognised in other income / expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year the asset is derecognised. The date
of disposal of an item of propetry, plant and equipment is the date the recipient obtains cotnrol of that item in accordance with the
requirements for determining when a performance obligation is satisfied in Ind AS 115.

3.13. Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the expected future economic
benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company.
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Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase
price including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deductingt rade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure related to the asset is added to its carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset only if it increases the
future benefits of the existing asset, beyond its previously assessed standards of performance and cost can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets comprising of software is amortised on straight line basis over a period of 3 years, unless it has a shorter useful life.

Gains or losses from de-recognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the asset is derecognised.

3.14. Impairment of non-financial assets: Propetry, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is any indication that any Propetry, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
Assets or group of assets called Cash Generating Units (CGU) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount to determine the extent of
impairment, if any.

An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs
of disposal, recent markett ransactions are taken into account. If no sucht ransactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation
model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publiclyt raded companies or other
available fair value indicators.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal ist reated as an increase in revaluation reserve.

3.15. Employee Benefits Expenses
3.15.1. Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term
employee benefits. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised as an expense during the period when the
employees render the services

3.15.2. Post-Employment Benefits
a. Defined cotnribution schemes

All eligible employees of the company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a
defined contribution plan in which both the employee and the company contribute monthly at a
stipulated percentage of the covered employee's salary. Contributions are made to Employees
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Provident Fund Organization in respect of Provident Fund, Pension Fund and Employees Deposit Linked
Insurance Scheme at the prescribed rates and are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss at actuals. The
company has no liabiltiy for future provident fund benefits other than its annual contribution.

Defined Benefit schemes
Gratutiy

The Company provides for gratutiy covering eligible employees under which a lumpsum payment is
paid to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an
amount reckoned on the respective employee's salary and his tenor of employment with the Company.
The Company accounts for its liabiltiy for future gratutiy benefits based on actuarial valuation
determined at each Balance Sheet date by an Independent Actuary using Projected Unit Credit Method.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates
used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the
market yields on Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date.

An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments
in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortaltiy
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses (excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net dened benet liabiltiy), are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding
debit or credit to retained earnings through Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they
occur. Re-measurements are not reclassied to prot and loss in subsequent periods.

3.15.3. Other Long-term employee benefits

3.16. Provisions

Accumulated compensated absences

The Company provides for liabiltiy of accumulated compensated absences for eligible employees on the basis
of an independent actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year, using the projected unit credit method.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period in which they occur.

Provisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of the time value of money is material, the enterprise determines the level of provision by discounting the expected
cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to the liabiltiy. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the
Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

3.17.Taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax

3.17.1.

Current Tax

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a period. Taxable profit differs
from 'profit before tax' as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are not taxable or deductible in accordance with
applicable tax laws.

@
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The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by
the end of reporting date in India where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss i.e.,
either in other comprehensive income or in equtiy. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlyingt ransaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equtiy. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities used in the computation of taxable profit and their carrying amounts in the financial statements for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

i. Where the deferred tax liabiltiy arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liabiltiy in
at ransaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of thet ransaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

ii. In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be cotnrolled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

i. When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liabiltiy in at ransaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
thet ransaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

ii. In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liabiltiy is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss i.e., either in
other comprehensive income or in equtiy. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlyingt
ransaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equtiy.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable enttiy and the same

taxation authortiy.
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Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged in the Statement of Profit and Loss as current Tax. The
Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that it is probable that the Company will
pay normal income tax during the specified period. i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried
forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Accounting for Credit available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income Tax Act, 1961,
the said asset is created by way of credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss as shown as MAT Credit Entitlement.
The Company reviews the MAT Credit Entitlement asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the
extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

3.17.3. Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

3.18. Contingent Liabilities and assets

A contingent liabiltiy is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be conrmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the cotnrol of the Company or a present obligation that is not
recognized because it is not probable that an outow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liabiltiy also
arises in etxremely rare cases where there is a liabiltiy that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company
does not recognize a contingent liabiltiy but discloses its existence in the nancial statements.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be conrmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the cotnrol of the enttiy. The company does not have any
contingent assets in the nancial statements.

3.19. Earnings Per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Earnings per share. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the net prot or loss for the year attributable to equtiy shareholders (after deducting preference dividend and attributable
taxes) by the weighted average number of equtiy shares outstanding during the year.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net prot or loss for the year attributable to equtiy shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equtiy shares. Dilutive
potential equtiy shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued later. In computing the
dilutive earnings per share, only potential equtiy shares that are dilutive and that either reduces the earnings per share or increases
loss per share are included.

3.20. Foreign currencyt ransactions

Transactions in foreign currencies aret ranslated into the functional currency of the Company at the exchange rates at the dates of thet
ransactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of thet ransaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies aret ranslated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at
the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency aret ranslated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
based on historical cost in a foreign currency aret ranslated at the exchange rate at the date of thet ransaction. Exchange differences
are recognised in profit or loss.

3.21. Cash-flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects oft ransactions of a non-cash

nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

@)
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3.22.Leases

3.22.1.

3.22.2.

3.22.3.

Transition to IND AS 116

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases
which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 Leases and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors.
It itnroduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. Effective April 01, 2019, the
Company has applied Ind AS 116 'Leases' to all lease cotnracts existing on April 01, 2019 by adopting the
modified rterospective approach. Accordingly, the comparative information is not required to be restated. Refer
Note 3.21 (Significant accounting policies — Leases) of standalone financial statements for the year ended March
31, 2019, for the policy as per Ind AS 17. The Company evaluates each cotnract or arrangement, whether it
qualifies as lease as defined under Ind AS 116. A cotnract is, or contains, a lease if the cotnract conveys the right
to cotnrol the use of an identified asset.

As per the evaluation carried out by the management, there are no arrangements which qualify as a lease as per
the requirements of Ind AS 116, accordingly, the Company is not required to make any adjustments ont ransition
to Ind AS 116 for leases where it acts as a lessee.

The Company as a lessee

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases that have
a lease term of less than or equal to 12 months and eases with low value assets. The Company determines the
lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with periods covered by an option to extend the
lease, where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option. The Company recognises the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense in Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term or anothers ystematic basis if that basis is more representative of the pattern of the lessee's
benefit. The related cash flows are classified as operating activities. Wherever the above exception permitted
under Ind AS 116 is not applicable, the Company at the time of initial recognition:

*  Measures lease liabiltiy as present value of all lease payments discounted using the Company's
incremental cost of borrowing and directly attributable costs. Subsequently, the lease liabiltiy is
increased by interest on lease liabiltiy, reduced by lease payments made and remeasured to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications specified in Ind AS 116 'Leases, or to reflect revised fixed lease
payments.

*  Measures 'Right-of-use assets' as present value of all lease payments discounted using the Company's
incremental cost of borrowing and any initial direct costs. Subsequently, 'Right-of-use assets' is
measured using cost model i.e. at cost less any accumulated depreciation (depreciated on straight line
basis over the lease period) and any accumulated impairment losses adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liabiltiy specified in Ind AS 116 'Leases'

The Company as a lessor

Leases under which the Company is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Lease cotnracts where
all the risks and rewards are substantiallyt ransferred to the lessee, the lease cotnracts are classified as finance
leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Lease payments from operating leases are recognised
as an income in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term or anothers
ystematic as is if that basis is more representative of the pattern in which benefit from the use of the underlying
asset is diminished.
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Ind AS 116 "Leases" requires lessee to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted
with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company
makes assessment on the expected lease term on lease by lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is
reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the cotnract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease
term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease
term, costs relating to the termination of lease and the importance of the underlying to the Company's
operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availabiltiy of the suitable
alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current
economic circumstances.

3.22.4. Determination of lease term

3.23. Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker
(CODM). The Board of Directors (BOD) of the Company assesses the financial performance and position of the Company, and makes
strategic decisions. The BOD, which has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker. The Company is engaged in the
business of i) Chitty and ii) Lending. The said business are aggregated for the purpose of review of performance by CODM. Accordingly,
the Company has concluded that the business of Chitty and Lending to be the only reportable segment.

4, Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of nancial statements in conformtiy with the Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that
period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Although these estimates
are based on the management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertaitny about these assumptions and estimates could
result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

In particular, information about signicant areas of estimation, uncertaitny and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have
the most signicant effect on the amounts recognized in the nancial statements is included in the following notes:

4.1. Business Model Assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the Solely Payment of Principal and Interest(SPPI) and the
business model test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed
together to achieve a business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the
performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how
these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturtiy to understand the
reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held.
Monitoring is part of the Company's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets
are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a
prospective change to the classification of those assets.

4.2. Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Company's EIR methodology, recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate
of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various
stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments and penatly interest and charges).

@)
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This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments,
probable fluctuations in collateral value as well as expected changes to India's base rate and other fee income/expense that are
integral parts of the instrument.

4.3. Impairment of loans portfolio

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement of the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase
in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

It has been the Company's policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary.

4.4. Dened employee benet assets and liabilities

The cost of the dened benet gratutiy plan and the present value of the gratutiy obligation are determined using actuarial valuations.
An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortaltiy rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and
its long-term nature, a dened benet obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

4.5. Fair value measurement

When the fair values of nancial assets and nancial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices
in active markets, their fair value is measured using various valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values.

Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidtiy risk, credit risk and volatiltiy. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of nancial instruments.

4.6. Other estimates

These include contingent liabilities, useful lives of tangible and intangible assets etc.
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5. Cash and Cash Equivalents

( Rs in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Cash on hand 110042 127933
Batance with banksy Treasury
a. In Current Accounts 2787222 880001
b, Im Sawings Acoounts 2, 75269 1,460,828
Cithery
" Short Tarm Deposit with Eerala Transport Devalopment
X inance Corporatian Limited
Ahort Tarm Deposit with Cerala State Social Sacurity Pension
e - 1,50,000.00
Tokal 3173033 1,61,630.72
6. Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents (Rs in Lakhs)
A al Az at
Particulars 31.03.2020 31030018
Figed deposits with bank Treasury (maturing after perod of 5,94,778.07 6,08,443.06
thiree monthe)- |See Note 6.1)
Total 5,94, 77807 6,08,443.00

6.1 FD with Banks/ Treasury includes restrictedt reasury/ bank balances of Rs.3,04,264.09 Lakhs (Previous year
Rs.2,82,194.05 Lakhs) This restrictions are primarly on account of deposits made int reasury inorder to comply with
provisions of The Kerala Chitties Act, 1975 Rs. 5,698.58 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 9,854.43 Lakhs) and Rs.2,59,167.99 Lakhs
(Previous Year Rs.2,32,308.50 Lakhs) in accordance with the provision of Chit Fund Act 1982. Chitty Securtiy Deposit in
Trust matured but not released due to various reasons Rs.39,397.50 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs.40031.10 Lakhs) and
earnmarked balances for unpaid dividend Rs.0.02 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs.0.02 Lakhs).
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A a1 Warch 31, 2020
AL Falr Value
15 |2
3|5 |38
e Ameetised Cast | O E E x E -
HERH A .
£l 8 ff
Bl E|f
4] | Loans T
i |Gole Loan 20637544 2,06,375,99
ji} Lu.drl Apainsn Chitly 2.03,506 08 | Z.W
i} |Ameart Becoverahle from Prized Subscribers 1583 40293 wﬂ
i'.':. IZ|-"||.'-.>'.I'."=.-=' |L'd-ll".; - . - . =.|..;'I:' az | o REZ,93
vl | Reeenue Reoavery Debdars 1,159,851 46 1.12.B53.45
Wil [Loan Lo government compsnies 352,05 0N 2,51 .065,00
vil} | Orthers 3.21,387.53 | 3,213E7.63
Tatal (&) - Grass A Ak, THT 25 30,96, 787 .49
Less: Impairment loss allowanoe L 23,673 'R]: 11,23,673.00)
Total (A)- Met| 79,73,114.49 29,73,114.49
L =
N Secumad by Tangibis Assats 2E 34,825 57 I8,34 RIS 57
M| Covered by Govermmignl Suaramles :._'_::'_rlh":l:ll: 2,52,069,00
(| Unseoured g, 83292 9,,39192
Total (B - Gross 30,96, THT 44 30,56, 787 .43
Less: Impairment lass allowarce 11,.23,673.00) {LI'I,E"]{I]}
Total {B) - Net| 29,73,114.49 . 25,73,114.48
icl X
11 | Loans in India -
i} Public Gecles 252,05 O 2.52,069,00
iy athars 28,440,718 .48 28,44,718.49
W | Laans autside India -
Taral {C] - Grass 30096, THY A5 Bﬂ.ﬂi.?'ﬂ'.!.d!l
Lass: Impairment ks allewanis 11,223,673 cu:ml. {1,22,673.00}
Tedal (C}- Med| 209,73,114.40 I:I.‘J'I‘-,.I.I.I.II
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An it March 51, 2000
AS Fair Walun
AEREE
Partiulirs - EE = 5 3:. 3
artsed Lot %3 E ~ -E —
i | & | is
2| & | 5§
3 E k=
18} |Loans
] Godd Loan 30,912.60 89,2180
il |Loar against Chitty 1, 74,612.26 17451226
; ii‘-l. ."trll-'_n.ll'lﬂn:*.u'.'l:r-d-:.:ll.-l'url Prized Subscribers 16, 71,604,945 [ I 16.71.604.96
I [Emplayes Inans hADFsa 6,402.50
| vl |Revenue Recavery Debibocs i.lL:.:'-S'Ei.EE- I I 1.30,555.85
| i) [Loan e goveramens companies 32,062,00 53,065.00
| wii] | Others 2,90 584051 0o 58451
Toatal [&) - Groise 24,24, 745,69 24,24, TA5.69
Less: Impairmont loss allwance 11,04,936.53) 11,03, 936 53}
Tatal {A] - 23.20,809.17 23.20,809.17
§|I-:-| | | -
. | 1} |Secared by Tangible Assels T3,66274.19 [ I 23 66,274.19
| 1) (e el by Governmens Goaranies 52 089,10 52,0559 00
[ 11y | Unsecured §,402.50 640250
Tatal (B} - Gross 34,1, 745,69 24,24, U569
Less: iImpairmont loss alipwanos [1.04,935.53) 11,035,536 53]
Total [B] - I'IH:! 23, 00,809.17 13, 20,B09.17
Hic I I -
_. 1 | Loars in Iredia I l -
1 Public hector 5 ORI 53.069.00
il Otheare 13,7669 23,72 576 6S
|t | Loans ouside ngia | :
Tatal (7] - Gross 34,14, Fa5. k9 24,34, TAE 6%
.. Less: Impairmenl los alloaanoe 11.03,936.53) [ | 1Lﬂ!.93553|'
Total [C)= “‘I 23,30,80%.17 I3,20,809.17
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8. Investments

As at March 31, 2020
A% Fair wnlue
Threwg= I Ceugnabss al
Particulan Arcoribed Coot o . Thvesgh Tadv ol i coot Todal
Comprabmsabe | profE o bxs | taeug® preiit
& Irsame o lzan
1] jl:.:lue-'nr-.e-" sErurdies 11 50 &5 - -0 . - 11,5007 &
| Tomal Groks (&) 11,507 20 - = . N 11,502.50
IE1 ||
et B, S = “a . =
i} Investmants autside india = : =
1 - -
Eii| FremgbmEnts in indis 11,507 &0 - 11,50 80
Tolad Grass [8)] 11,502.80 . = a " 11,502.80
‘Loss: Allowarce far impalrnent lass | C)
Total - Neat 0 = [&) - {C }| 11 502.80 3 : . s 11,502.80
As at March 31,2019
At Falr walug
Through | Deugnated
Amaitisied Thrau
Particulars Ceat Other h't: at fair value AL ol Tiortak
Comgrehien y through
|z
slve fzoma | prodit o logs
[A1 | Gavermirese sbourilies SrEED e ED
Tofal Grogs (d) STERD 57680
fuh |
:i: Inweslmenls enddigde il - - . -
1l bevwasmients in India STRAD | . ETE S0
| Totad Gross (8|  576.80 576.30
fl,-::: Allowarce for impairnent loss | C
Total-NetD =[A)-|C}| SreB0 - - - - 57680
Government Securities
Hﬂ“!lrm Aot March 21, 2049
Parthoulars
Units: Arming Linits Astniun
¥ 5% Hon-Converdible Redeemable Eands of Eersls indrastrciue
= E1E 0 - 245, M
rremsbrreert Fungd Bopd
S5 Man-Covrertibile Fedemsalle Bonds of Kerdla pviratracbho e st menl
- T4 ED 330,10
T Board
& 1% Mon-Coruerible Becenmable Bands of Kerals indrastrocts
Ireeeybrreei Fund Bosd 215000
A0 Men-Converiible Bedesmable Boneds of Kerals [nimastraciure
- 000 -
Irwestmierd Fural Board
it Mon-Cermveriible Bedermable Boncds of Kerals Inimstrachurne
600 00
Irvizbmisal Furad Buard
Tekal 11,500 40 ATi.RO
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9. Other Financial Assets (Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars A5 o 3003 PR0 A5 31.03. 138

Irfarest Accrued on Ceposis 15 11565 42859 37

oy Cepoais 18672 18030

Oters E55E5 1T 55,7RL11

ToalGiees 0957, 75 S ATL S

Lesis Srrgdio s gl bess aloraan oo I'J.II.HJ:I
Tortal -Met 0S50 AT

9.1 During the Current year, in the lights of AG Comments, the Company has reclassified corresponding previous years
figures of Other Financial Assets. The Company as at previous year ended 31 March 2019 had Other Financial Assets
amounting to 46,601.88 Lakhs, 52,269.71 Lakhs was additionally reclassified as Other Financial Assets. Refer No. 15.1.

10.A Current Tax Assets (Net) (Rs in Lakhs)
Particilars K it $L08. 3020 A 303 0EE

Wcorie Ta | a1l 185028 130817

Toral 1859728 137174
10.B Deferred Tax Assets (Net) (Rs in Lakhs)
Fartiridars Bt L0300 £ 3 3000 2809

la] Propery, Flam ang Equipment -l:!'l.:l'l- iﬁ-ﬂ

s Pmplopes Renst 5300615 a4 .08

J2 | Prouisian toe Bad and Docbrihe Debis 15,6000 1541870

] aiham (e GRS

Teasl 151806 mam.ad

10.B (i) Deferred Tax Expense

( Rs in Lakhs)
| E £ £ £ | '
ES E_ . # E L
H f3 A 52 g A3 . Bs
* CE gda o ER E3a gd
¥ . =33 o = Finm =8
Batiodgs ; Hd 2z s E= - -] - ok
" ® d 5 3k & 25 oy 5
X Z: =~z f 2 EE i 1
Eg =g = EE cRE
[T SRR WSS —— ] inui 1rar [A ¥ ] 510
151 E P Baruil i | ek FEr i T 5.2 ITEET ) it 2 145 5 LTS
b | Parvan e R andt Sl Dk S LIRRET gLt 1hdma) ma i
i an | LT — ER25
Toisl | 1L 10LI7 ] LAE AN ] [ m TLELEDS
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11.A Property, Plant and Equipment
( Rs in Lakhs)

i ion of ddsits i Buding: Frisissiong Tatal

Caarge Ior ihe year = 12.14 3T 3L Ta19 1319 12E05 B20.62

Dispealy - - {5451 i3] {1945 | j1ams nres | jueaTe
Balieie a5t 31 Menth MIEY = ERET] ATL AL 3940 Jazas w01 | 1ee318 |

Ovarge 107 the paoriod 3146 HE 06 L5646 46611 | 8,1361%

1a.m
.18 EEE

Dy _ 89 | zanes) | (m6ed {57731 | oo Ess | |
o

LEXT
b st | st o[ S| e | et

( Rs in Lakhs)

Mheecri pitkon of daseis
Sopfmwyre |
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12. Other Non-Financial Assets
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( Rs in Lakhs)

Particulats ” at Mach st March
1,030 31,4
Ursecarad - Corsidanad Good
Frepaid Eepances TL10 11453
Ealance with gowernmest sl crities 1.50 1554
I .:.l_-._u. .'I]:u:r'l.;.'.: o . GEY. 46 11189
I ok of Satinceny 16472 1M
nter Branch Curent Azcount 1177754 10,141.53
Stamp and Stamg Fager o Hasd T 358
Tapila edvacie 19500
Total 12,075.43 1076347

12.1 See Note 29.15 for details regarding Inter Branch Current Accounts.

13. Borrowings

s ot March 31, 3000
= N C
o a llr- '& "
e
7 4% | 538
Farticulars i =g a BEE !
E - A B
e |:P | az%
& g % 2E
- - - - - - i E - '.:. - E
Loams sepapahe on demand From Banks- [Secured b a fen on Fieed :
d 134354 13315
Jepont with Backs ' i
fuort Teem Lian fom Hznks- (3ecurad by = ben on Faeg Deoase with : |
?'IZ“: Bm Lz nmh Jaeogran eng B [eposn wil .1.I'-:'.-_I'::'|:||:':'. m
i - :
Tatsl 145,343.50 - | 24634358
i A5 at March 31,2019
= ] =
: : £y 13 E 4
Pariculars % E ;: & EE 3 Ig
AR LN
i SE-E- I
s tepdnells oo demand Feam Banks- G3eourad By & ben on Naes - e i
Teenit wilh Kk 7550 .
Sherl Teom Loar Tom Backe- |Secwred by o len on Foed Depoul aith ~
e ' 2,35,000.00 1.35,000,00
= 5
Total 2,47 558,00 24T 56800
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14. Deposits
iz ak Aarch 31, 2020
i At fairvalue | Designates at fair
Porticulors At amortized cost | thraugh praft (value through profit Total
or loss or |loes
Daposit frem Public
Fieed Depasit 8,75,275.83 75
_ Chitty Sacurity Dapasit i 4,40,363.63 44036363
Shart Term Depasits 16,357.73 15357.73
Sugama Deposits G0 A02.24 QO 40224
Total 14.22.399.43 - - w
“AE ak March 31, 2019
R At fairvalue | Designated at falr
i At amortised cast | through profit |value through profit Total
ar kass or |oss
Dopisit from Public
Fien Dapasit 771,299, 74 T4
Charty Sacurity Depsitin 382,11 38X TEV.11
Shrt Teiin DEE@'H 15.'5__12.]3 E&E.H
hﬂlma Dleposits ;‘Iﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂ E@j3
Total 12,54,764,50 . - 12,54,769.50

15. Other Financial Liabilities ( Rs in Lakhs)

Particulsrs B at 31.03_00H) Ag gt 110332010

Inberest Accrued snd dos an Public Depasit M EEE
|Enberest Accrued End doe on Shoet Term Depaosit 23371 150668 |
|h1[-eresm-:{rued on Chily Security Depasit in Tousl 1365508 10415.25
Wnpaid Matunge Fised Dopasits 37108, 75 A1 46378
Unpaid Matiered Skart Term Deposits 34849.30 297139
Unpaiid Man-Operative Sugama Doposits 173,60 166.26
Finanta Payabla- Chittyf Kurl 1847 BE4.30 15,51 52513
[Finance Payabie- Hire Purchase 139.75 B3.35
|Hna-r:-|:n Payable- {Supphers of HF ltems| = 5
|I=rrb:ru|: Bayable an Loan from banks (Mabilisatian) £32.08 14 66
bnterest On Gratuity Deposit 3.7 305
Chitty Seourity Deposit in Trust Matured but not <laimed 825975 584433
Emploryee Benefits Experses Paysble 283N 239,53
Sacurity Capasits 10519 161.30 |
Creditars far Expenias 32, 159.50 71474

Total 18,62 516.00 16,16,924.84

15.1 The Company as at previous year ended 31 March 2019 had Other Financial Liabilities amounting to 15,74,655.13
Lakhs .During the Current year the same has been rectified and regrouped in the lights of AG Comments. Refer No. 9.1.
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16. Provisions (Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars Az 2t 31.03.3020 Asat 31032019
‘Provisian for Employes benchis. |
01 Gratuily E!B_‘.I'ﬂ Fdhag
il Leawe Encashimasns 1 11,525,044 10,807.38
Prevaivian lor e o Praud Slisapprapratian Lm.ﬁ SG8.27
Total | 1572208 13,516.64

16.1 See Note 29.6 for disclosures required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 19 - “Employee
Benefits”

16.2 See Note 29.14 (d) for details of provision made for Fraud/ Misappropriation.

17. Other Non-Financial liabilities

( Rs in Lakhs)
Particalars Ay ar IO 000 | Asad 3L0E. 20008
[Plerpi Money on Emploges Lo Oaa .52
Sagial Sevanty SCheme JRey sad Bhadamal 14203 19283 |
|Incosye Asceiend im Advancs | T8 &,494
Sratutory and ob=es dues | 4 7a¥ar 504100
Total BR300 §.240.97
17.1 See Note 29.17 for details regarding Social Security Scheme (Revised Bhadratha)
18. Equity Share Capital
( Rs in Lakhs)
Partizulars Aset 310220 | Asat 31032009
[T T
100, [¥1,40000 | L0, 00,0000 Equity Shares of parvalue of Rs. 100/ cach 10,000, 00 10, 000
svded, Subscribied aod Fully pakd:
O, D00 | L0 DL 0000 Equity Shares of oot value of Rs 1000 eacn llj‘m w

18.1 Terms/ Rights attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares with a face value of Rs. 100/- each. Each holder of equity
share is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by
Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in the case of
interim dividend, if any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. The Board
of Directors has recommended final dividend of Rs 35/- per equity share of Rs. 100/- each, subject to approval of shareholders at
the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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18.2. Reconciliation of shares at the beginning and at the end of the financial year
( Rs in Lakhs)
A= at 31032020 As at 31032019

Particalars
Mo of Shares Amount Mo, of Shares Amount

Mip of xhares ag at the beginning of the financial

RS

LOG00.000 10,0000 10000000 1000

Adad: Shares wseed dn I The §'eal = - - _

Moot ehares ps at the end af the flnancial vear 1mm,m 10,000.00 10000000 Lo DDnon

18.3. Particulars of Shareholders holding more than 5% share in the Company

(Rs in Lakhs)

As at 31032020 Asat 31032009
Partioulars
O Mo, of Shares Uy Mo, of Shares
Gaverniment, ol Berala 100%; 1,00.00,000 10419, 1,0, 0k O

18.4. There was no fresh issue or buying back of shares in the preceding five years other than the bonus issue as stated in Note No.18.6
below .

18.5. There are no issue of securities convertible into Equity / Preference shares.

18.6. The Company had issued 50,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.100 each as fully paid up by Bonus issue in the ratio of 1:1 for Rs.5,000 lakhs
during the financial year 2016-17 by capitalizing General Reserve.
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( Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars o ot
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
General reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year B0, 796.63 TE,462.18
Add:  Transfer from Retained Earnings b,227.42 6,253.58
Less;  Utilized for issuing Bonus Shares - -
Less  Dividend 3,500.,00 3,500,00
Less;  Dividend Distribution Tax 71943 719.43
Closing balance B821.804.62 B0,796.63
Chitty Statutory Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 6,B31.45 5,607 .04
|Add:  Transfer from Retained Earnings 1.051.64 122441
Closing balance 7,833.09 6,831.45
Other Comprehensive Income (D0
Balance at the beginning of the year {2,612.79) [2,596.85)
|Add :  Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans in OC (441.76) {15.93)
Closing balance 3,054.55 (2.612.79)
Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the vear - -
Add:  Profit for the year 7.279.08 1.778.29
Less:  Transfer to General Reserve 622742 6,553 88
g Transfer to Chitty Reserve 1,051,649 122441
Closing Balanca - -
Total 87,633.16 B5,015.29
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20. Interest Income
[ ¥rat ardud Warh Wisar arvied Warch 51, 2009 |
%58 i fsc, B38| § .8
LR 5§ gi:g‘; 3LE 5§ 5355%
Particalars Eaf ! ST rIEL -55.;5“
SEE € |5EE5s §5% 1£:8§°
Y FEizE Si: FEEs
EEE - BT 53| & = 8 =
|Imerest a0 Loars i
Gedd L= 14,835 68 BEIRIZ |
Fard [lepesh L D B4, 11 ]
[ Chitty LoaniPaslioch Lesn | it K] | 3,173339
Mew Chim Laan 1 1004 38
TR B, 9I.55 7,557.80
Apiabie Lo stomer Loan 1 H,lﬁ.ﬁ'l' FEERST
Coranmer Wehiclhe Lose 14135 ]
Sra s Sk i e LI | 30685 Pl ]|
Eerals Soane Soo Seourny Perakn Lo 4816 1 AR 42
| Interml on BN Dum E]?’ﬁ- lﬂ'ﬂm
nler sl o IneEsleid | LR ] 1208
[ rterexton depostt wil bnkiiressury | 565, SAALE
Db irDa i mcosie ‘I M . .
| Tatal | 4,53,535 & iﬁ%ﬂ

20.1 The Company as at previous year ended 31 March 2019 had Interest Income amounting to 1,29,161.99 Lakhs .During the Current

year the same has been rectified and regrouped in the lights of AG Comments.Refer Note 23.1.

21.A Other Revenue from Chitty Operations

( Rs in Lakhs)
Partioslers For the pear eaded Foor the yar ended
Wirfizg bee m 7136
Ellflf.'-".'hf' and Precosising Charnges 17955 9.18
[Fraghitaraan Charges Gl i3l
v 24331 25853
Total 1,157.85 112837
21.B Other Revenue from Chitty Operations (Rs in Lakhs)
. Far the per maded Fer it ymar enchedd
Pastiostary 11,00 2008 ¥1.83 W49
Ip'r:ihl-:-'ll:h-llr.' tutginwied Tickens fLN o 16,340 65
Forleited 'soarthapaksa Income THG43 L513.13
Ctadenz moome |&oction Sunsls) & ETSET 4 (151 56
| Total 1017144 1255537
21.1 See Note 29.16 for details of Forfeited Veethapalisa Income.
22, Other Income (Rs in Lakhs)
Far thee pear eaded For BRi year ended
Partieulars A1, 2k ¥i50 330
[Frofit on S o Fieed dmsens 10T 150
Mscalaninis Inoane 3.5 bl5d
Total
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23. Finance Costs (Rs in Lakhs)
I Yaar sadud March 31, 2020 Yoar aeded March 31, 2008
Particulars 0On financial mstruments. | Om financlal msbruments | On Ginance Bstument | On fnasdal intrmeses |
" maasured at v wilue | measwed ot amortised | measured at frvslue | messured ot smortised
thrcaugh 0l ot through et
Fined Depasts | EI‘-.___Eﬂ ] !E"JILHI-
g Lepas i - m "m}ﬁ
imtars 1837565 . 16,306, 10
e . — S —t
C Tota | e

23.1 The Company as at previous year ended 31 March 2019 had Finance Cost amounting to 96,629.95 Lakhs .During the Current year
the same has been rectified and regrouped in the lights of AG Comments.Refer Note 20.1.

24, Impairment of financial instruments

( Rs in Lakhs)
[ Wear onded March 31, 2020 Tear crded March L 2015
Particular O Angscdal rgtuments | Onfinencial insbruments | On finencizl imseruments | On fnsscia] imdromengs
s megaured al far aslue m-nnl-lt-w measured ot fab value | mossuned ot ssontised
thrzaigh 01 st through Ca1 coak
Lesan Azarsy I 22,165 30 5 F9405.05
Had by dintgen O A5G - 551,95
onhers I Erasn 35842
tota [ [ : o
25. Employee Benefits Expense
( Rs in Lakhs)
- For the year anded For the year ended
Salzrias and Wages TE,TOL0 G I30.36
Contrizutinn b Prevside nt Fusd £3400.74 b6 80
Coattrizulion b Gratuily Fund !..!_4551- !imu
basned Lagas by 3 536,50 3,564,940
Bontuan & Performance Boentiae 55,80 B0 40
Alall Wiellanm Enprs i 45,07 S5 a?
|' Teral 94,558.03 75,691.07
26. Depreciation and amortisation expenses
( Rs in Lakhs)
Fer the yuis anded For the yaas endid
Ptk 31032020 31833019
Targ izl Ashits 1 113615 G622
I=Eangitie Raapfy £1.83 1585
Tatal 1,188.08 537,47
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27. Other Expenses (Rs in Lakhs)
. For the year ended | Far the year
FariicAan o 314:?;01?”
¥ehick Aunning Expanses _ 55,56 5117
Rent 235734 192136
Ratas & Taxas 61338 6382
Powes @ndd Fuel 54202 475.E4
Fostage and Telephone 18200 1951313
- Frinting &_@'E:_l_'.i-:-"{ﬁ.' - 48531 45547
Legal end Frofessional Charpes 12428 1588
Registrataon and Filing Fes 4 fana? 357704
Insurance 3812 10649
Sitting Fees 1o Directars 438 3.05
Service Tax 7210 5.62
Loss on Sale of Assets 1515 aTr
Wiscellanaous Expsnses L6586 140759
Lales Proration Exgenses 213766 -
Trawedling Expanses 356.96 32321
Corporate Social Responsibility ' 240,53 237.00
CASRL connectivity charges 84276 852.20
Repairs and Maintenance
Building 1802 11.49
Cata Processing Equipments 24435 204.97
Jthers 93.16 £9.04
Eemumnderation [o Auditors:
11l For Audit 8333 BE52
{iu} Other Expenses 8.57 1266
Advartisemant 2, 12575 1,742 a6
Cevelopmant Expensas 10,932 38 2988 TE
EAT Irgut Reversal 66941 936590
Total 27.543.73 21,842.25

27.1 See Note No. 29.3 for disclosures regarding Leases.

27.2 See Note No. 29.13 for disclosures regarding CSR Expenditure.
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Additional Information
29.1. Fair Value Measurement

( Rs in Lakhs)
Barticulary Fﬂ'h'lll-l'l‘f“ Fﬂl‘ﬂlﬁl‘“‘l‘fdlﬂ
F1.03.m0k0 31.0%.2009
Pralind Loy d fer 1 year 6A57.30 TR R
-.".".'lg"Im:l-:.-;-r.'u.:-:-ﬁun:ﬂ:-r' of mgurty shares of B= 300/ each fully paic up 1,00, DO 1,00 {30 DO
Eamings por Share | Basac B CHluted)| 68.37 Trh2

Fair value of the financial instruments is classified in various fair value hierarchies based on the following three levels:

Fair value of the financial instruments is classified in various fair value hierarchies based on the following three levels:

Level 1|Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2|Inputs other than quoted price included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly.

Level 3|Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The fair value of Current financial assets and liabilities is considered to be equal to the carrying amounts of these items due to their short-term nature.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year..

(Rs in Lakhs)
Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis is as follows:
Fal! ¥alui
Fartizubars =air value Hierarchy Asat s at
103, 16920 A1, 2009
Frnarnia Hyvueby meanined al bar vabe= :Iu.:nr N |
imvesiments in Mon-Lorwarise Redeemabie Sords
Linspumiad E 1E, 5028 STEED
Category wise classification of financial instruments is as follows: ,
(Rs in Lakhs)
Foir Yahw |
Particulss Reeder Kot Az af A at
02020 B0, 200
.I Inmmecml Avusby memsuresd § smortived cost
Lones ? 29.73,114.49 13,20809.17
i Financiad fswsis a0 85515 mﬂ“
Rank lalatoens oF e Suan canh aied cask scuinale ity i 594, TTHO7 B, 08 34306
Cash and cash eguavaienis 5 31, 73033 1,61,630. 73
Total 36, B0 ATRAS 31 B9 754,54
Finarcal Liabiitias reamured ol a=erlived o |
Azeromng: 11 bR EERS 256850
Dhir priovial 14 1287339943 13,54 TRa 50
Hher trancal ol d ey 1% lmﬂ-‘lﬂ-ﬂ MHI.H‘HH
Tortald 36 31503 31,74 262,35
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Financial Risk Management - Objectives and Policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance and support the company’s operations. The Company'’s principal financial assets include chits,
loans, investments, cash and cash equivalents and other receivables that are derived directly from its operations. As a financial
lending institution, Company is exposed to various risks that are related to lending business and operating environment. The
principal objective in Company 's risk management processes is to measure and monitor the various risks that Company is
subject to and to follow policies and procedures to address such risks. The Company has a well- managed risk management
framework, anchored to policies and procedures and internal financial controls aimed at ensuring early identification, evalua-
tion and management of key financial risks (such as liquidity risk, market risk, credit risk and foreign currency risk) that may
arise as a consequence of its business operations as well as its investing and financing activities.

Accordingly, the Company’s risk management framework has the objective of ensuring that such risks are managed within
acceptable risk parameters in a disciplined and consistent manner and in compliance with applicable regulation.

Risk Management department shall be responsible for the following:

a) Identifying the various risks associated with the activities of the Company and assessing their impact on the business.
b) Measuring the risks and suggesting measures to effectively mitigate the risks.

However, the primary responsibility for managing the various risks on a day to day basis will be with the heads of the respective
business units of the Company.

1) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter due to difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associ-

ated with financial instruments that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk may result
from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair value.

The company has sound financial strength represented by its aggregate current assets against aggregate current
liabilities and its strong equity base. In such circumstances, liquidity risk is insignificant.

2) Market Risk

As the Company's overall debt is less compared to its equity, the exposure to interest rate risk from the perspective of
Financial Liabilities is negligible. Further, treasury activities, focused on managing investments in debt instruments, are
administered under a set of approved policies and procedures guided by the tenets of liquidity, safety and returns. This
ensures that investments are only made within acceptable risk parameters after due evaluation. The Company’s invest-
ments are predominantly held in fixed deposits. Fixed deposits are held with highly rated banks and have a short
tenure and are not subject to interest rate volatility.

3) Credit Risk

Credit Risk arises from the risk of loss that may occur from the default of Company's customers under loan agreements.
Customer defaults and inadequate collateral may lead to loan losses.

The Company addresses credit risk through following processes:
a) Credit risk on Gold loan is considerably reduced as collateral is in the form of Gold ornaments which can be easily
liquidated and there is only a distant possibility of losses due to adequate margin of 25% or more retained while

disbursing the loan. Credit risk is further reduced through a quick but careful collateral appraisal and loan approval
process. Hence overall, the Credit risk is normally low.
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4) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The company is subject to interest rate risk, primarily since it lends to customers at fixed rates and for
maturity periods shorter than the funding sources. Majority of our borrowings are at fixed rates . However, borrowings at floating
rates gives rise to interest rate risk. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond control, including the monetary
policies of the Reserve Bank of India, deregulation of the financial sector in India, domestic and international economic and
political conditions, inflation and other factors. In order to manage interest rate risk, the company seek to optimize borrowing
profile between short-term and long-term loans. The Company adopts funding strategies to ensure diversified resource-raising
options to minimize cost and maximize stability of funds. Assets and liabilities are categorized into various time buckets based
on their maturities and Asset Liability Management Committee supervise an interest rate sensitivity report periodically for
assessment of interest rate risks. The Interest Rate Risk is mitigated by availing funds at very competitive rates through diversified
borrowings and for different tenors.

5) Foreign Currency Risk
The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currency (mainly US Dollar) which are subject to the risk of
exchange rate fluctuations. Financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, are also subject to reinstatement
risks.
As the number of transactions are less in number company is not entered into any forward contracts to hedge the risk.

Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximize shareholder value.

The Company’s financial strategy aims to support its strategic priorities and provide adequate capital to its businesses for growth and
creation of sustainable stakeholder value. The Company funds its operations through internal accruals and also through borrowings.
The Company aims at maintaining a strong capital base largely towards supporting the future growth of its businesses as a going
concern.

As at 31st March, 2020, the Company has only one class of equity shares. The company is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.
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29.2. The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Guidelines are in place
covering the acceptability and valuation of each type of collateral.

The tables on the following pages show the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset. They also shows the total fair
value of collateral and the net exposure to credit risk.

: | Coiriga sl
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i g 3
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Lt LRI
5 ) Lioara § Lisran
{ 4 4 4 a 4 4 { }
rAd Loas I 1ER AR 18T |
L ggeares Ty SEAR FEIBCEDE & T B |
g Asmsergale frore Friper . - T .
B ) | ISR ERAREE] 1EEs 200 .93 1553 40005
Sim TR
re [ Tphwyesizany ¥ FERH] . L ay | L F T H
v Buvrinn Rpiowory Delioa | LI3E5345 IRLE O 115350 46 |
v LOgF 1D 3P e DT e E T ] 153 [ES
L [Hwr TLE A T
L | urns msts E1EYS 1S LIRS
: [ Far v o o herkd |
- - -
E: it 1re |l £, < B ;
. i BRITEEEI I HE Y 3 i
ok 3L 1603 ELVE £ ¥ EEE =i 4288 | dyge K] :
i 8 AR INEHT IR 1R §
¥ = 22 ¥y : ifo ] =
Foosis jy o apd) S :
i [} & - [} i [} [}
1 |Cark amd rank poa mdera ELEN T} LELEII M 161 3071
Fave fkeroe oihes ikan Cwhoans
i (= L EEe ] A ETEE ) EE AT |
rah s 1
| EE ' ' ' ' . ' ' ' '
= | Lmrei el
Taad Lo | EEFRE] i D a0
i i H ' H a H ' i i
Lisd# dgaat T LMERDS LM EILTE LGS
LT i B Fricog!|
i il WM 1 1AM | 1 AN |
sareiduii
f—i | i i i a i i | i
¥ Eviphon s Loy FLENEH 2R e ] BAEH
s Feemrie Frroeeesy Dewom LKA IR | 1, AR
| i i H a i i i i
L Lo # 1L gyl (O e LRI Ll L 3 uE
L] [Fwn SHalRal FRLEEE R 1S 51
i | i i ' a i i | i
L |Dpwr sl wpEs IR EER RN E]




. ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

QOI(SFE

29.3. Leases

Finance Lease :
The Company has not taken or let out any assets on financial lease.

Operating Lease:

I. Lease disclosures under Ind-AS 116 for the year ended March 31, 2020
All operating lease agreements entered into by the Company are cancellable in nature. Consequently, the Company has not
recognised any right-of-use asset and lease liability during the year.

Lease rentals received for assets let out on operating lease 29.36 Lakhs are recognised as income in the Statement of Profit and Loss
under the head ‘Service Charges’and lease rental payments for assets taken on an operating lease 2,357.34 Lakhs are recognised as
‘Rent’in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Il. Lease disclosures under Ind-AS 17 for the year ended March 31,2019
All operating lease agreements entered into by the Company are cancellable in nature. Consequently, the disclosure requirement of
future minimum lease payments in respect of non-cancellable operating lease as per Ind AS 17 is not applicable to the Company.

Lease rentals received for assets let out on operating lease 29.20 Lakhs are recognised as income in the Statement of Profit and Loss
under the head ‘Service Charges’and lease rental payments for assets taken on an operating lease 1,921.36 Lakhs are recognised as
‘Rent’in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

29.4. Taxation

(i) Reconciliation of income tax expense for the year to accounting profit

Bartieuders Feear Erdiedl Year Ended
31, m.xe0 1103 s
[ !:'ugr-'ulr: pafire Tae as per Sanement of Profit and Loss 1051636 12 344.13
add - Diher Comprehersie Incoeme That wil not e recasdied 1o 3taement ol Prolit and Loss {58034 (24.36)
Aecmeting Prolil 9.505.00 132487
:hI:Tul-:n ahirae & the asplicabie tax rabe 24538 40502
|c}|Adjustment in mespect of current income tax of prior years 45,1 22
| 441{ Tan affuct of kems that are ret decuctbl in detarmining Tasable profit Hi1s 3453.89
'l Cthery 118 (1,622.56)
' 3T | 610
il add: Imerast pavabie under iIncome Taw &t = -
. |E)| Taw and Intarest g 6.130.51
:l-l: dgde Inoorma ta relrieg o lems that will not be reclassied to profit or kss 4B 58 B.43
:ll: Curent Tax a5 per Staterent of Profit and Low W,ﬂ uﬂ,ﬂ
'_:_Ii Applh:i;:;;;ﬂtu aspor Hl'l-;r:-r;lrl_ N 5170 34.6508%
I :.._. Awerag efiectiva tan ratn /3] an 50.17
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29.5. Contingent Liabilities, Commitments and Contigent Assets (to the extent not provided for in the accounts)

( Rs in Lakhs)
Pamulams m Z018-1%
1 Contingers Lizbdities
) Clarsn agaicad the Comgary nol acknowkdged el {See Mot balow]

il Ircame Tax lfmm m!
i} serest Tax I,m 104308
il Serece Tax m :I.,,_Hlﬂ.?-ﬂ-
vl Befund on T0G on rert fram sidbus Drarch = 133
vl Consulznog Agreemert with b Kerala State Comstruction Cormaration Lid - -
wll Eroylioes of T51 4 5370 5337

Wil Bervt Escalasian Chim -‘,|.1'I.i§ BR.7T

bl Bank Guarantees:

) |Otner maney Tor which the Campany is contingentty lable

pLE ) 14,2566

U Coammitmenty
Al Estimpied amount of contracs rerraining 1o be ssecuted rod provided for 18537 araai
]| thecaliad Bakility an sharan and athor ivsaslmen s partly paid _ _

c| | Letter of credit in favour of Thysenkrupp - -

TOTAL 1581568 18,676.82
Il Details in respect of claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt disclosed above are as follows :
( Rs in Lakhs)
Farlivdir WA EEE
[l A0 was direcied 1o recorgeder intevest wi's 2444 by Hon'ble Mgk Court af Ksrala PRiindig Tl |
[ 15 5
Wil| DT, Theriszur iszued dermond arder w's 156 duing D015- 38 apairet which the Company 5389

fled rectification applcetion. The ACIT issged fresh crders wis 154 mising demeand of
As 53 &0 kakha. DAy 1905-55)

(60| ITAT pasoed Order diracting A0 16 ro-smmine e Esue of suctian wssthapalive slrech, 3,070.23 ERipl
A0 porlivmed dis sfowanos and raited demand of AL, 307023 laceal whach Ba, 1350 lacy :
was dlresdy paad by Compary. Agpsieved by (e Order, sppeal was- Fed bafore CIT
|Appealsy, During FY 2005-16. the Comairny. howesss paid full amounl demdrded
tatalling o Re 1713 40 lakha b debsiled bedia- A J004-05 (R 13T 33 lakha ), &Y 2005-06
| 256, 64 lakha ) A% 2006-07 (Rs 607 01 lakke | A 2O07-08 Rz 56 T8 bekha] AY J00E-00 [Bs
144,50 Bakha) AY 3000-10 | Rs L4685 Ipkba| A% 2019-12 [Rs 18487 lakhs) and A¥ 2012-13
Ry 188,62 lakhis], Agpes b bt Tled afier remitfing 1Fe desmand amaant is full, (AY
20005 1o P01 0 s 201 1- 1210 201 2-13)

(| Assessment wis 143]3) for & 2013-14 & 2015-15 and w's 147 for B¢ 2010-11 was sEa.m 80,03
commpleted disalkraing undistribated seathapaliss and ratsed dermend far &Y 2040-11 |Rs
266,57 Fakhe), AY 2003-14 [R5 75705 lakia ] ard AY 2015-16 (265 41 lakhs), Agoes Hled
before OT (Appeats] for these years.  Appeal was 2o filed for AY 2004-15 againss
disaliowanca ol undiaribured veethapalsa amaunting To B2 607 71 Bkhs, |&F JOI0-11,

2013-141 7015-16)
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(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars

2019-2020

2018-2019

il

il

|vid

L]

[E4]

|k

|wd

Baseemeant bbs B43]3) dor AY PO1T-1E was completed disallowing undistebaated
wonthsgahia of Ry, 3.084 BEhs ared prgeidon for Bad & doubelul delies of R 3T 4568 00
lakii and raisid o tio demand ol Ra, 7,784,440 lakhe. Apgesd led Bedara CIT (Anpaak] far
£l denand, Tax hia bean paid in Rl agalngd the desnand

featios oy 156 waes issued by ITO rosing a denpnd of 85,580,608 Crores for the Ay 2048-12
ey by wy of disallowing peosision far bad and doubtul destts ared snme other iters
aporst vehl o comoany has fled aopesl with €11

Thee Encome Taor Department TRACES) has raised demand motioes on soms procodossl
irregutar thos regarding TOS from AY 200702 to 3017-18 amauntng 1o As 32504350 1l
008 J01E. The sama i keing loaked inta and geiting rectified on an ongoing bask. (4
J00E-04 to 200B=1T)

SLPSLPIE] Mo 26727 OF 2006 fled with Hon'ble Supreme Court dunrg 3008 sgainst
Imterest tas apolicebl= on fingnce dharge armounting to Ay 1043.30 lskbhs ueder Hire
Purnchose scheme

Commssmer of Cengral Excise, Custams & Service Tae- Calicuf gdemmanded Rs 76185
lakhs along with a penalty of Bs 38093 lekhs towards Service charges paid io
Gaomarnimeny during FY J013-13 s JO13-14, Aggodd fled befosa CESTAT [AY 20 3-14 &
F014-153

Addl. Commissiones, Calcut mised a demand of Bs 600 lakhs being Serdoe tax on
comimsann received o sake af lemeng tokets. Pesanst hoanirg held and Ordar mamited
(A 2011-12 0 2010-14}

Agsr Commisslones, Thirissuer e an Order for Bz {066 [3&ha {incluciing pena®y) relaring
o Sarvos tax an slary pasd to Kelso shatl Apeaal fled with Cammessioner |Aapaaks). (AY
01514

Commesioner af Centmal Excms, Custors & Servce Tas- Calicut issues demand for s
A58 67 fakhs regarding irregulor aved meert of CENWAT crechl on guaranies commessaon
paid io Government and ofher shoet payments, Appesd is beirg fled in {his repend (A
JO1%-106 & H1b-17)

At Comimissiones Thiissur Hied an agpoal bofone the Comimissioeses |Appoals) against
P o o s, dispaoring off 5 sheve cadse motioes with regard 10 nan payment of servioe
faw an coemmisslen received froemn WURT business. The appoal wak against dropping aff
cemand on 3-chow cause noticos and the decisian for not Impasing penasy an 7 show
Cansi NoCoes on Sarvice e s already remitod. (AY 2012-13t0 2014-15|

Appeal Aled agsest the Ovder of dsst Commussoner. Thresar mejecting our refurd
apgiicetion Chased on CBEC notification Mo, 397301 55T did 14,10, 2015] for B5,.3.64 laki
g SErice bax remitbod with interst on WURT 8 Exprosd monesy o B boe the
e Daly 3012 0o S 004 (A 200 53-14 8 2004-15]

Appeals fled againet Ordars receued 21 our warkus branches which are pending before
Cammissioner (Agpess] Emekulam. Major parfion of 1he demand was on chitt related
income, Based o the judgment of Hon'kle High Court of Kerala of 2012 regarding non-
appdicabdity of Service Tawon Chitrelstied trars actions beteseern 5112 ta 2015, modaiities
are being worsed ol [AY 2008-08 to 2006-17]

The Company has obtained stay from Hon’ble High Court of Kerala against Lok Ayukta
decision to refund (TDS) on rent from the building owner of Vithura Branch. The above
said case has been disposed.

The Company had entered into a consultancy agreement with M/s Kerala State
Construction Corporation Ltd on 29-03-2010 for construction of office complex (G+4)
at its site at Kakkanad, Kochi for an estimated cost of Rs. 265.25 lakhs. During the year
2011-12, they had submitted a revised Bill of Rs. 296.25 lakhs. Till 31-03-2017, amount
to the tune of Rs. 280.85 lakhs has been paid to them. Company had settled the claim
on 11.02.2019 as per the Resolution no. 8529 of 519th Board meeting held on
26.10.2018.

MOAE:

66

TIELAL

N0

[RLER

Lids

£

QLEE

455 67

DRI R IRGINAL &1 65101857

&M 50N WO SRS BND BOR MO DEI00S

154

Perl

LT3

1588
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j=i] The Comparty was caemgted from proulsions af ES1ACE ua 10 31.03-2008. The Campasry 5337 5337
Pzl Taken wip with Gowarmment e isse af exending B exemnprion Tow J008-06 1005 :
10, 200-11 & 2011-1F Howeyer, Goeernment informed oo 1.3-10- 2011 that Camprirmy™s
request for memphan couid not be cansidened srce modical benefits given by & ane
reithar similar nor superior to thase provided under ES) schere, Thi matfer wag
subsadquently takes up before the Govemnment snd again it was nof conssderpd
favourably. In 1he mearrshile, B2 authonbes conducted inspection and demnanded a sum
ot A5 21,10 lakhs. The CTompany approached Ermglayes Insurance Coun and absaingd a
wlirg with ragard to the abopes aid ceders, The lighilitg ol By, 2130 skl jiugp bo 31-10-7011
ESI Corporatian kad raksed a demand on 0108 200 T amounting to Bs. 32 27 lakhs being
regular cantribution from 0LL0E 2012 ti 30.06 2017, Subsequently, during the personal
Faaring Babare the Assmias Director, ESL the Camparry re-itarated 'y sbad and status
pua ks beer maintnined on the matter iroview of Cowrt Stay already cbiained by the

(Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars 2019-2020 2018-2019

Ciampay.
|mn]| Mt fxcalatios Claim B S S a8 Tr
1| Caanitiagen Comirmety .

al The Company had placed an ceder with s Piest Syt & Technologies (7] Led fioar > Atk

Design, Develpment B Enplementafion of “Core Applesticn Soaltwane for Buseness
Accounbing” (CASEA) Tor a comiract valuee of R 216,140 L‘H:IH-II:I!ILIdInE AR} on O
AR-200, et of wehich ar amgunt ol B5, 184,33 lakhs bl Beoen piEd oo (hém g te
31.03.2020.

The Compeery had issued woek order 1o My's Acos! Front Ine Umited o 20052008 for 20549 2059
Dexsigm, D logenant bnsiadlaton & Cosnméssioning of a Centralizea Application
Sortbamre (CAL] Sar integrating varicus wpsbem appbcations, The conbract value was By,
&1.16 lokhs out of which an amount of Rs.d05T fakhs had been provided in the
Eciomints | peind o themap ta 31.03.2020.

t] The Com@any had enterod into a contract with Ms ASHNL for VSAT sarvicas an BETT [ X
{805, 2015 for a confract valss of R 152,75 lakhsout of which sn amount of Bs 65,98
Lakhs had been paid tocharmn il 31.03.2020.

The Company bad entercd inbo & friparsite. condrack with &8s, BSNL and M5 - 134.53
Dernpnaion Data Tor BEnage] Network Sevics on OE05. 2005 e & cantract valae al
Hy. 03 50 bakhe purt of wehich an amourt of As. 789,06 Iskky had been provided inthe
aCCoeints Jpaid 1o tham Gl 31.03.2020.

2] The Company had entered inta 3 contract with Mis, Schoal of Management Studies, . 14.00
Cachin Usmncersity al Science snd Techrdba gy for dudy an restracturing of KSFE Lid
30,100, 201% for a contract value of As. 24.00 lakis ot of which anamount of Fs.10.00
Lik ke Fusd been paid tothem il 31.03.2020.

f}  The Company had entered #io a comiract on 1207 . 30ET with M/s Acos] Froomilires Lid ﬂﬂ.l!- 112,34
with regand o mairtenance of coampliter systems & picessories Tor an annual conaacy
walue of Bs. 173,93 lakhs The comtractis exooied for a period of 3vears and an amar
al ®s, BL 85 lpkkn had Boen paidihem bill 31.03.2020.

g The Comgasw had eriered Imio & contract on 14112008 with Urlungal Lasour 430,11 110653
Cordract Co-operatee Socisty |, Wotskars, Eachikode to rencaate the Hesd Office -
tllding for contractvalua of Rs. 1300153 lakhs plus GET. The contracst isexesuted fora
periad of 1l menths from the date of execution af agreement arel an amant of Rs
19500 akhs khad beenpakd H1F 31.03.2020.

b
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29.6. Disclosures required under Ind AS 19 - “Employee Benefits”
(i) Defined Contribution Plans

During the year the following amounts have been recognised in the statement of profit and loss on account of defined contribution
plans:

Particulars 2019-20 JE-19
Employears contribution ta Provicen?t Fund B340.T4 BE46.20

Employers contribution o Emaloyes’s SEate Insurance Corporation - -

(il) Defined Benefit Plan/ Other Long Term Benefits

Comgeneatid abienies |Man-
Grabsny (Funded) Fuunilad]
il Actuaral Assurmotions Aa9-20 BFiA-1a 20719530 JOLE-1%
istirman b Bl [ annum) 75058 T 50% T 5B T
Enpictod et on SN A85618 |per anveam| 7.50% TR0% S.0FE 5T,
Compongation escalation rode |per annoem) 5200 500 5.0 SO0
Floriality e radian Leees Rortality (1592-96] Binmabe
ig-z0 H18-19 20153 A0LE-19
(il Bezanciliation I:lr_[l;s-tﬂ'l value of nhligatios
Prasenl valus o chligation 22 the Eegrming of The pea T ES5 T3 23,406.50 1083738 979057
Current Service Cost 1,580G.97 153508 424721 B12784
It e 1,495.04 LB1LEI 06 B CETEY
Acruariad [gainlf lad LT 236 [3,58052] (102737
BenefnsPald 275677 | (229199 [2o17.85) | {zs67se)
Present walue of chiigsfinon al the snd of the year 25, 2. 22 14.985.79 11,526.03 10,807.38
(iE) Reconciliation of Tair vaiua of plan assets
Faw value of plan asses at che Begnaing of the year 22704 = ALBG0 T . .
Fapecied retuen oo ofan 15568 170588 156458 - -
Ackuarial [gpin)f ks - -
Camrisuion 1,895.90 I55E432 = =
Benetis paid {2, m86.771 (r2u3.34) E -
Actusl Retyrn o Flan Asastz {128,271 RdA2 - -
faor walue of plan assets at the ond of the pear 341157 I3, 784,80 - 3
(i) Descrigiion of plan aseets- Insurer Managed Funds
w B cabicry of plan el ak % of welal glan assels
Fepnl= - =
Bonds 5 =
Gits - =
Chheds - Ingurer Managed Funch, (L of Indig)®
* Inthe absence of detailed information regardrg plan asseis which is furded by Insurance Comoany, ihe composaion of 2ach magor
cetegory of plan maets, the pementages on smowrd of sach ceiepory to the teir wabse of plan es2et hes not keen disclosed
fwi Met ddsset]d Lighibty recopresed in the balysceibeet a3 ot the
enc of the year o
Present value of Obligations as at the end of the year
Fair value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year E,‘.I'ﬂ:u 48573 12,595.04 War38
Net present value of funded obligation recognised as 1341058 I 7ean a ¥
(asset)/ liability in the balancesheet LM 1.780.98 ]J,_lim 1980733
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] b Compengabed ahsences
Particulars by (Fu I | Man-Faredid]
2015.31 B 15 20157 FLT R
(i} Expensesrecognized in ithe Staterent Prolit and Loss

Curment Servoe Cost 1,506 57 153568 -i-..'bﬂ'.!t 4. 1Xx 84
Inba et Casl 1,595,584 LEIL.E3 o9 B2 EER93
Enpecied refurs on plar acsets {1.,705.85) |L.564.56] . a
Acluartal [gai] ) lass iecognised in the paroe? 59034 I4.36 JL.580.53) {1.03737)

Towal cxgancas mecognized in the Sramemant
2367 1.208.11 3, 636.50 3,584.40
of Profit and Loss for the year T

| _ Actual return on plan assels - .
i} Non-current sesd coment walue ol obligaban

Min-Currin im.]i 14,1?3.55 11445032 10,305.11
Curtunl m iu.iﬂ- .Hl i:a?
Total walvs ol abiigatian 25, T62.22 20AES, 70 11,526.04 10,807 k8

Parlicasaanr it As at

(] Amuunt recaagrined o (urrenl prar A jiea o oo g
drabuity (furded
Presant value of defired heeft abligation ﬁ?“-ﬂ 34, 485.79
Fair Walue of plant oty 342252 21,744,580
Fursdar slabyrs- daewss| ikl iy 2,335,310 1, 74098
Actuanal [gar] § lnss an plan ckdigatoems 554034 24.38

Acizanal jgam] f loss om plan asels - =

Compenurted shsences {Tunded]

Presenl walue of deficed bersft anligation A1L526.03 ‘Lﬂw—“]
Fair Walue ef plan) ot - -

Fumsded slabun- {posed|  lingelitg 1152603 :Lﬂﬁ?ﬂ
Aciyarnal [gain] § loss on plan obligat o 'Lm' ‘m?ﬂﬂ

Aclzanal [gain] # ks con plan assels = =

Particalars Year anded 31.03. 2030 Yoo eresed 31032018
| 1% rerease | 1% decrease L% incregse L 1% decrease |
b & guanTitabye sens ity anakesis hor sgniicant assumatian ' '
limpact on delined benedn obigstion] is as beiow
Grabuimy (Furded|
Discount rake 1_!_.9’91!.91 2T TR512 22, TER 69 26,463 .20
Salany increase rale 27,_!2!.* 24 364,73 25,547 .48 23,165 487
Emplapee Tumeer mﬂ m.!!- “,L“M 11,1'!1?,
Undiscounbag Cashi Fow over the years 026719 - a8 13276 -
Compengyied ghsences {Funded]
Discount rake 1011321 12453 66 10,044 26 1167571
Salany Increase e 1345010 10,700,499 11,5857 10, 11656
Employer Turmower 17 a0E6T GEE5.41 1643523 T
Undiscounied Ceeh Fow cver the yoas 2352045 - 21 ©31.93 -

In the above analysis the change in the facor is made with other factors remaining intact.

Undiscounted Cash flow over the years is the aggregate cash flow without discounting but keeping other factors intact and is the total
payment for the current complement of staff. Maturity profile of the obligation is reflected in the undiscounted aggregate cash flow given
above.
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Actuarial gain/ loss arising on experience adjustments

Particulars As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
Gratuity (Funded 56034 3a7L21
Compensated absances [Noo-Funded) |1,580.53) 364,13

(xi) Note on actuarial risks

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: Investment Risk, Interest Risk, Longevity Risk and Salary Risk.

(a)

Investment Risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.

Interest Risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase
in the return on the plan debt investments.

Longevity Risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality

of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan partici-
pants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary Risk

The present value of the defined plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As
such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The above disclosures are based on information certified by the independent actuary and relied upon by the
Company.

The plan assets of the Company are managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India in terms of insurance
policies taken to fund the obligations of the Company with respect to its Gratuity and Compensated Absences Plan.
Information on categories of plan assets is not available with the Company.

29.7. Operating Segments (Ind AS -108):

Segment information

The Company has identified business segments viz; Chitty and Lending as its primary segments. Revenues and expenses directly
attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment. Expenses which are not directly identifiable to each
reportable segment have been allocated on the basis of associated revenues of the segment and manpower efforts. All other
expenses which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed as unallocable expenses. The assets of the
Company are used interchangeably between segments, and the management believes that it is currently not practical to
provide segment disclosures relating to total assets and liabilities since a meaningful segregation in not possible. Since, the
revenue and profit or loss attributable to external customers are not material as compared to the combined revenue or profit or
loss respectively, geographic segments reporting is not given.
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o . Fnmeoal | Huwnpy i
. Particulars - Chitey H““Lurl:ln-!; Tartal
sl |Sepment Bevanue 201%-20 1,85220.20 005644 1. 3527664
2013-19 15449247 55303 8L L 1074731
Loy Inker Segmens Eevenpe 2019-30 -
2018-14 - - -
Toal pirgires 201320 1,65 230.20 0,056 44 13527664
2013-15 15444347 E5, 105 84 E10.74731
ol |Segment resls 201320 13837751 50.1B6.594 1,98 564.55
2013-19 13950739 3320951 LT73ELT.30
Liss: Uralicable [xzendeum|net af Uralocosted Income] m m
20118-14 1A 5a195
add ; Gl incomie ket m AT A54. 15
201319 dTEIQLTH
Total Proft BafareTax and Excepianal bems 2019-20 1051636
13-4 1234413
iyl © [epptonsl Iams 2019-20 -
201813 r
Preafil Bidord ta 2019-20 m
201819 1334415
£ |inceme Tz Expersas 2018-20 3,3237.30
2013-13 446584
Profit after Tas 2019-20 TATROG
| a01a-118 Lreeza |

29.8. Disclosure of Related Party Transactions in accordance with Ind AS 24“ Related Party Disclosures”

List of Related Parties where control exists and also other Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place and
A. relationships:

50 No Magume ol Relatinnshis Narie of Balated Pamy
L Ealated party idy. Peslipos: Thomes. Charman
i Tey manageis persornal i, WP, Subrgmanian, Mesaging Ditegicr
B.  Transactions during the year ( Rs in Lakhs)
L. Transactions with Key Managesial Parssnnal M- 204R-19
i -
| Sri, A Purushothman B0 56 4,57
1la Renmursralion 10 e Managing Direcios -
Sn. %.P.Sulbramanian
| Tatal 08 | w57
1.k Hanar anisn 10 Chasimen Sufy, Peseligerin Thismas 4D 340
l Tonal 24 2.4
|6 Hher Pavenesds s Clhairman 119 05
1r |Oher Bayments 1o Manapmg Director/Other Direciars: - =
Omer Paymients 1388 .03
Arness: Silling leey 433 155
Taotal 19.45 12.98
14 Trave! Expenses:
Managing Direcios Sri. & Purushothman Ll 06
Sri. V.P_Subramaniam
Chairman zad Orher Directors 592 4.9
| Total 7.56 w i
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The Company has been remitting Guarantee Commission on the Fixed/Sugama/Short Term Deposits outstanding as at the end of
the preceding financial year. Interest accrued on Deposits is not considered for the purpose of remitting Guarantee Commission as
interest is paid on a monthly basis & Company is not having any cumulative deposit scheme. The Comptroller & Auditor General
during the course of their inspection during 2003-04 had stated that an amount of Rs.561 lakhs is due up to that year on account of
difference in method adopted for computation of Guarantee Commission.

Guarantee Commission Payable to Government of Kerala.

29.9. Recent IND AS and Other Statutory/ Legal Announcements.

The Code on Social Security,2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits
received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which
the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and
will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification
which would have been applicable from 01 April 2020.

29.10. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

( Rs in Lakhs)
I':rTrullrs
Ag gl March 71, 208 A5 at March 31, 31149
Wikkin 12 Ailer 12 Tral Within 12 Abter 12 Tatal
mouths | mosthy meaths matih
Sortrorlings (other tham el sevurities) 263359 AR MAT 242, 5580 24156804
Depursits HEL7IR 58 LR3Ta6 08 JER NS 7555580
Cher Freancial Liabilities 196250001 196251601 16,35, 720454 F6205,524 54
Provisions 15,7208 1572208 1351664 1351084
CHher noeefinascial Hakaliles 4489 el £ 859530 405279 A1 5 ISL9T
Total T | 162719 A115208497 45,1735 14004 52 2n 4353035

29.11. Asrequired by Ind AS 109 (‘Financial Instruments’), provision for expected credit loss in respect of loans has been calculated based
on management’s estimate of probable default and loss given default. However, provision created on loan assets towards

non-performing assets and standards assets as per the RBI norms in the books of accounts, as a matter of prudence.

29.12 Other Financial Asset includes the following

Particulars A micrumid

.'.:u":l: Dl Liscker Brtt Bevevatde T o .!I.'!
CMMOEF Advanoe Beooverahle mredl |

| Feszival Advanoe To Skt 16T

tclvarce To KETE Stalf Co-Operative Society LLd 7L
Flood Adwance To Shafl R |
Amoarnt payable ko R-.-r.'.f::! Membezs Acoounl. "_lhf__

Foteimay = Ivesimel i Chilly fd IS b
dvaroe o Invrdments i KHFE S0 |

MEREL S2ald

Total #5,565.17
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29.13. Corporate Social Responsibility

29.14.

The Company has been remitting Guarantee Commission on the Fixed/Sugama/Short Term Deposits outstanding as at the end of the
preceding financial year. Interest accrued on Deposits is not considered for the purpose of remitting Guarantee Commission as
interest is paid on a monthly basis & Company is not having any cumulative deposit scheme. The Comptroller & Auditor General during
the course of their inspection during 2003-04 had stated that an amount of Rs.561 lakhs is due up to that year on account of difference

in method adopted for computation of Guarantee Commission.

During FY 2019-20, the Company has spent an amount of Rs. 240.53 Lakhs towards CSR activities.

Bad And Doubtful Debts

a)

The impairment allowance calculated for expected credit loss on loan portfolio and the provisions calculated on
non-performing assets in line with the NPA guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India were compared. Since, amount of
provision as per RBI norms is more, the management is of the view that such provision is more conservative and as a measure
of prudence, provision has been made in the accounts accordingly.

During the year, the Company had made a provision of Rs.19,752 lakhs (PY: 31,475 lakhs) towards bad & doubtful debts on RR
Debtors and outstanding NPA (Non RR). Provision has been created on the basis of RBI norms. The total provision created for
this category amounts to Rs.1,22,934 lakhs as at 31.03.2020.

The provision for amount outstanding under ‘Amount Recoverable from Prized Subscribers’ is calculated based on internal
parameters fixed by the Company. The percentage of personal surety cases under RR in relation to total RR dues is ascertained
and the same percentage is applied on ‘Prized chitty default. The amount so arrived is considered for creation of provision @5%
thereon. The Company has made a provision of Rs.739.00 lakhs up to 31.03.2020 as against a provision of Rs. 822.00 lakhs as at
31.03.2019 for ‘Amount Recoverable from Prized Subscribers. The Company has made a provision of Rs.112.50 lakhs up to
31.03.2020 for "Advance to KSFE Staff Cooperative Society".

The Company, as a matter of prudence, has made a provision @ 50% amounting to Rs.879.98 lakhs (PY: Rs.395.42 lakhs against
fraud/ misappropriation during the year, the cumulative provision of which comes to Rs.1,848.25 lakhs as on 31.03.2020.Even
though the prudential norms of RBI with regard to provisioning requirements are not applicable to the Company still as a
matter of prudence effective from FY 2018-19, Company had switched to 90 days NPA norms & creation of provision for
doubtful debts & standard assets as per age-wise analysis as stipulated by RBI in its master circular
No.DBODNo.BP.BC.9/21.04.048/2014-15 dated 01.07.2014 (though 120 days norm is prescribed for the year 2018-19 for NBFCs
by RBI).

The Company has identified bad debts, which are classified in to the following categories and written off during the year:

( Rs in Lakhs)

st st

Particulars Year ended 31" | Year ended 31

March, 2020 | March, 2019
For Recovery from Prized Subscribers 34.79 26.69
For Interest wiver write off on Gold Loan - 0.19
For Revenue Recovery Debtors i .
For Chitty Activities 434.67 485.26
Total 469.46 512.14
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29.15. Inter Branch Accounts

a) Inter Branch Accounts is shown under Other Non-Financials Assets in Note 12.
( Rs in Lakhs)
. As at As at
Particulars

31.03.2020 31.03.2019

Inter Branch Current Account Asset / (Liability) 11,277.14 10,141.63

Total 11,277.14 10,141.63
b) The net difference of current accounts represents difference between the Head Office and Branches and between Regional

Offices and Branches. Efforts are being continued to reconcile the same.

. . . . (Rs in Lakhs)
29.16. Auction Veethapalisa In Terminated Chitties

Auction Veethapalisa in Terminated Chitties under Kerala Chitties Act, 1975 is shown as liability. From F.Y.2014-15 onwards, the Board,
vide Resolution No.6738 dt 11-11-2014, in accordance with the provisions of the Chit Fund Act- 1982 (CFA), had decided to treat
forfeited Veethapalisa of Chitties under CFA 1982 as Income of Company at time of termination of chitty after adjusting defaulted
amount. Accordingly, during the year, the Company has accounted an amount of Rs. 2,349.43 lakhs as income under this head as
against Rs. 2,523.12 lakhs in the previous year.

29.17. Revised Bhadratha Social Society Scheme
The Company had been acting as agent of Government of Kerala in respect of Revised Bhadratha Social Security Scheme on
commission basis. The scheme has been since discontinued, the account shows a net balance of Rs.142.02 lakhs (PY: Rs.192.92 lakhs)

due to pending reconciliation. (Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars A5 BT 31032020 | Asat 31.03.2019
Depuosits Received & Qulstanding 117.35 115,82
interest Accrued on Deposit | 3B84.54 AR5.08
Interest Credited by Treasury on the Amount Depasited J186.76 3,134.77
Sub Tokal (A} 3,689.05 3,639.67
Less Amount Receivabdie from Gowt. on acoount of
fal  Cormnmmission Paid 1203 12.03
i)  Interest Accrued on Deposit Receivable from Govt 48005 480,05
le]  Balance with Treasury 3054 .96 295467
Sub Total {8] 3,547.03 3. 446.T5
Het (A - B) 14202 19292

29.18. Company based on the expert opinion obtained from independant practicing Company Secretary has stopped the
practice of transferring the unclaimed matured deposits to IEPF account pursuant to section 125 of the Companies
Act,2013. Repayment of deposits accepted by the Company are fully guaranteed by the State Government and does not
fall under the purview of deposits as per Rule 2(1)(c)(i) of the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014.
Government Guarantee availed by the company are timely renewed with Government and Guarantee Commission is also
promptly remitted by the Company.
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. Maximum balance outstanding at any time during the year with non-scheduled banks (Treasuries and District

29.20.

29.21.

29.22.

29.23.

29.24.

29.25.

29.26.

29.27.

29.28.
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Co-Operative Banks) is not exhibited in Note 5 and 6. In view of large number of accounts maintained at different
branches, it is not possible to compile the figures, within the existing system framework.

Finance Charges Payable Chitty/Kuri shown in Note 15 amounting to Rs. 18,47,864.20 lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 15,51,525.13 lakhs)
includes Prize Money Payable amounting to 1,58,883.34 lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 1,08,959.17 lakhs). This includes amount payable in
respect of tickets substituted by the Company. The said amount is net of the prize money paid in advance.

Government of Kerala had alloted 15 cents of land to construct Kollam branch building as per letter from District Collector,
Kollam vide Letter No.L3-23875/72-3 dated 04-10-1976. Assignment has not been obtained so far. The cost of land has not
been paid to the Government, as it has not been fixed so far.

At all branches, balances of debtors and creditors are confirmed on random basis.

The Company is accepting deposits from public, repayment of which is guranteed by Government of Kerala. The
Government had guaranteed deposit to the extent of Rs.300,000 lakhs vide GO (MS) No.182/2012/TD dated 24th
September 2012 for a period of 10 years from 17th August 2012. Guarantee coverage limit of Rs. 700,000 lakhs as
sanctioned vide GO(MS) No. 24/2017/Taxes dated 18.04.2018 had been further enhanced to Rs.900,000 lakhs vide
Government Order No: G.O. (MS) No.49/2018/Taxes dated 29.06.2018 it has further enhanced Rs. 1,200,000 lakhs vide
Government Order No: G.O. (MS) No.16/2019/Taxes dated 19.03.2019 it has further enhanced Rs. 1,500,000 lakhs vide
Government Order No: G.O. (Rt) No.42/2021/Taxes dated 18.01.2021

Government, vide Government Order No. G.O. (MS) No.54/2016/Taxes dated 16.04.2016 had directed to pay 100%
dividend on the equity shares from 2015-16 onwards and exempted Company from paying Service charges from 2015-16
onwards. The Company had declared dividend @ 35% for FY 2016-17 and taken up the matter with Government for
reduction in rate of dividend. Dividnd @35% for FY2017-18 was declared and paid during April 2019.

The Company has a system to identify the customers at the time of opening accounts in respect of loans and deposits.
Steps are also being initiated to identify the customers in line with the guidelines issued by the RBI under provisions of
Prevention of Money Laundering Act 2002/Know Your Customer (KYC) norms. However in few instance the same has not
been complied by few branches, Company has taken strict measures to ensure the compliance of the above mentioned
guidlines issued by the RBI.

During the year, as per provisions of Chit Fund Act- 1982, Company had transferred 10% of Book profit to Chitty Reserve
Account.

The Company was acting as an agent of Governemt of Kerala for its Old Bhadratha & Revised Bhadratha scheme (both of
which had been since discountinued). Funds moblized by the Company under this scheme were parked with District
Treasury, Thrissur TPA424 (Old Bhadratha) & TPA875 (Revised Bhadratha Scheme) respectively. The District Treasury
Thrissur, on the basis of G.O (P) No. 51/2018/Fin dated 28.03.2018 had resumed a sum of Rs. 2,04,18,998/- & Rs.
11,42,63,277/- from the said TPAs vide letter no. SB/3043/18 & letter no. SB/3043(2)/18 respectively. Balance under the said
TPAs appear under Note 6 (Other Current Liabilities) & Note 12 (Other current assets) in our financial statements. The
Company is yet to get back the funds so resumed. No accounting entry has been passed in this regard.

The Company in compliance with the provisions of Chitty Act 1982, registers chitties only after realisations of first
instalment however in few instances cheques have been realized after registration of the Chitty, further there are also few
instances of cheque dishonour after registeration. Company has taken strict measures to ensure the compliance of the

above Chitty Act provision.
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The Company follows the procedure of depositing an amount equal to contribution by defaulting subscribers less such
deductions as may be provided in the agreement in a approved bank mentioned in chit agreement, in accordance with
Section 30 of Chitty Act,1982, However in few instance the same has not been complied by few branches, Company has
taken strict measures to ensure the compliance of the above mentioned provison of Chitty Act provision.

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic across the globe and in India has contributed to a significant decline and volatility in
the global and Indian financial markets and slowdown in the economic activities. Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has issued
guidelines relating to COVID-19 Regulatory Package dated 27 March 2020 and 17 April 2020 and in accordance therewith,
the Company has proposed a opt-in moratorium of three months on the payment of all principal instalments and/ or
interest, as applicable, falling due between 1 March 2020 and 31 May 2020 to all eligible borrowers classified as standard,
even if overdue as on 29 February 2020, excluding the collections already made in the month of March 2020. For all such
accounts where the moratorium is granted, the asset classification will remain at a standstill during the moratorium period
(i.e. the number of days past due shall exclude the moratorium period for the purposes of asset classification as per the
Company’s policy).

Further, the Company has, based on current available information and based on the policy approved by the board,
determined the prudential estimate of provision for impairment of financial assets. Given the uncertainty over the
potential macro-economic impact, the Company’s management has considered all available internal and external
information including credit reports and economic forecasts upto the date of approval of these financial statements.
Accordingly, the Company has made prudential estimate of provision for expected credit loss on financial assets as at
March 31, 2020. Based on the current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company considers this provision to
be adequate and expects to recover the carrying amount of these financial assets. The extent to which the COVID-19
pandemic will impact the Company’s future results will depend on developments, which are highly uncertain, including,
among other things, any new information concerning the severity of the COVID-19 pandemic and any action to contain
its spread or mitigate its impact whether government-mandated or elected by the Company. The Company will continue
to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

Figures of the previous year have been regrouped and recast wherever necessary to suit the current year’s layout in
accordance with the Ind AS requirements.

As per our report with UDIN 21021855AAAAHA9427 of even date attached.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

For PAULSON AND COMPANY Sd/-

Chartered Accountants Adv. Peelipose Thomas
Chairman

Sd/- Sd/-

CAPAULSONK.P. V.P.Subramanian

LL.B, FCA, DISA (ICAI) Managing Director (Incharge)

Membership No. 021855: FR No.002620S

Partner Sd/-
Mini.V.R

Place : Thrissur

Director

Sd/-

Date : 23/03/2021 S.Sarath Chandran

General Manager (Finance)

Sd/-
Emil Alex
Company Secretary
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OFFICE OF THE PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT GENERAL (AUDIT-11), KE RALA,
THIRUVANANTHAPURAM

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
FINANCI AL TATEMENTS OF KERALASTATE FINANCIAL ENTERPRISES LIMITED,
THRJSSUR FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

The preparation of financial statements of Kerala State Financial Enterprises Limited, Thrissur for the year ended
31 March 2020 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act; 2013
(Act) is the responsib ility of the Management of the Company. The tarutor y Auditors appointed by the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India under Section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial
statements under Section 143 of the Act based on indepe ndent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing
prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Act. This is stated co have been done by, them vide their Audi t Report
dated 23 March 2021.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplemen tary audit of the financial
statements of Kerala State Financial Enterprises LimHed, Thrissur for the year ended 31 March 2020 under
Section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This sup ple mentary audit has been carried out independently without access to the
working papers of the Statutory Auditor s and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditors and Company
personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, | would like to highlight the following significant matters under Section 143(6)(b)
of the Act which have come to my attention and which in my view are necessary for enabling a better understanding
of the financial statements and the related audit report:

A COMMENTS ONPROFTTABILJTY
Statement of Profit & Loss
Revenue from Operations Interest Income ¥1,53,535.80 lakh
Interest on deposit with bank/ Treasury ¥60,665.69 lakh

1. Thisincludes interest ¥62.08 lakh earned on Chief Minister's Distress Relief Fund deposited with the
Government Treasury. The amount pertains to contribution made by the Company to CMRDF,
which was provided as refund to the Company with a direction to utilize the amount for
construction of community shelter halls. Since the refund was for a specific purpose, the interest
earned thereon should have been earmarked for the specific purpose instead of as income of the
Company. This has resulted in overstatement of profit for the year by ¥62.08 lakh and overstatement
of Other Equity by the same amount.
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B. COMMENTS ON DISCLOSURE

2.

Bank balance include ¥3599.67 lakh being CMDRF Refund received from Governmentin December
2019 which was provided with a clear direction to utilize the amound for constrution of community
shelter halls. As this treasury deposit is not free to be used by the Company, this fact should have
been stated in the notes on accounts.

C. COMMENTS ON AUDITOR'S REPORT

3.

Thiruvananthapuram
Dated: 25.10.2021

As per Sec 143 (6) (b) of the Companies Act 2013, the comments given by the C&AG of India upon
or supplement to the audit report shall be sent by the Company to every person entitled to copies of
audited financial statements and also be placed before the Annual General Meeting of the Company
at the same time and in the same manner as the audit report. The annual accounts of the company
for year 2018-19 was adopted in the 50th Adjourned meeting of the company held on 19 April 2021
which was after the date of Audit Report (23 March 2021) for the year 2019-20. The fact of
non-adoption of th e previous year accounts in the Annual General Meeting has not been disclosed
by tlte statutory auditor in his report.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

Sd/-
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT GENERAL (AUDIT-II), KERALA
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